
 MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
 “A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 
  
  

REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, February 24, 2015 9:00 AM Council Chambers 

Administration Building 
 

 
#1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
  

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

 1 

#3 MINUTES 3.1   Regular Council Meeting minutes held February 10, 2015 –  
         to be adopted. 
 

3 

  3.2   Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

- 

#4 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

  

#5 DELEGATION 
 

5.1   Teepee Creek Stampede Association 15 

#6 BYLAWS 
 

  

#7 OLD BUSINESS 
 

  

#8 NEW BUSINESS 
 

8.1 April 14th, 2015 Council Meeting Cancellation 36 

  8.2 Canfor Request 
 

38 

  8.3 Policy Structure 
 

43 

  8.4 Policy 1006 – Employee/Consultant Temporary Housing 
 

45 

  8.5 Policy 4006-Equipment & Vehicle Replacement Policy 
 

51 

  8.6 Wapiti Corridor Multi Use Plan 
 

57 

  8.7 Rescind Motion 12.12.733 
 

60 

  8.8 AUMA Invitation 
 

61 

  8.9 Flashing Green Lamp Program 64 

 
1



 
  8.10 Nitehawk Recreation Area Funding 

 
75 

#9 COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & REPORTS 
 

  

#10 CORRESPONDENCE 
 

• Stakeholder Meetings with Linear Property Assessment 
• Primary Care Network 
• East Smoky Recreation Board Minutes  –  December 
• East Smoky Recreation Board Minutes – January 
• Alberta Transportation – AAMDC 
• Source Water Protection Plan – Town of Grande Cache 
 

 

#11 IN CAMERA  
 

11.1 Personnel  

#12 ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

 

  [Type text]
 [Type text] [Type text] 

2



 

 Minutes of a 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
M.D. Administration Building, 

Valleyview, Alberta, on Tuesday, February 10, 2015 
 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

Reeve Dale Gervais called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTENDING 
 
 
 
 
 

Reeve   Dale Gervais 
Deputy Reeve   Tom Burton 
Councillors   Dave Hay 
   Roxie Rutt 
   Bill Smith 
   Dale Smith 
   Les Urness 
   George Delorme 
    
Chief Administrative Officer  Mike Haugen 
General Manager, Community Services  Dennis Mueller 
General Manager, Infrastructure & Planning  Grant Gyurkovits 
Recording Secretary  Lianne Kruger 
 

ABSENT  General Manager, Corporate Services  Rosemary Offrey 
Communications Officer  Diane Carter 
 

#2:  
AGENDA  
 

MOTION: 15.02.058. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That the February 10, 2015 agenda be adopted as presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

#3.1 
REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 
 

MOTION: 15.02.059. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Tuesday, January 27, 
2015 be adopted as presented. 
  CARRIED 
 

#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING 
FROM MINUTES 

3.2  BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES: 
There was no business arising from the minutes. 
 

#7 
OLD BUSINESS 

7.0  OLD BUSINESS 
There was no old business brought forward. 
 
 
 
 
 

3



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 
#8 
NEW BUSINESS  

8.0  NEW BUSINESS 

 8.1  LITTLE SMOKY CEMETERY COMMITTEE 
 

LITTLE SMOKY 
CEMETERY 
COMMITTEE 

MOTION: 15.02.060. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council appoint Anne Nichols, Doreen Hebert and Joe Arnault to sit as 
Members at Large on the Little Smoky Cemetery Committee. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.2 JOHN DEERE TRACTOR TENDER 

TRACTOR TENDER MOTION: 15.02.061. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council approve the purchase of two (2) John Deere 6140R Tractors supplied 
by Prairie Coast Equipment for a total cost of $81,000.00, as per the approved 
2015 budget. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.3 TRAFFIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT STUDY 

TRAFFIC IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT 

MOTION: 15.02.062. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council approve additional funds of $2,800.00 towards the Traffic Impact 
Assessment Study on 39th Avenue, with funding coming from Engineering-Other 
Professional Services. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.4 DONATION OF 100YD. 3 OF 4:20 GRAVEL TO VALLEYVIEW & DISTRICT GUN 
CLUB 
 

GRAVEL DONATION MOTION: 15.02.063. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council approve a donation of 100 cubic yards of 4:40 gravel to the Valleyview 
and District Gun Club with loading and hauling to be supplied by the Valleyview 
and District Gun Club. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.5 VALLEYVIEW MINOR HOCKEY – ARENA ADVERTISING 

ARENA 
ADVERTISING-VV 
MINOR HOCKEY 

MOTION: 15.02.064. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council approve annual advertising of the Greenview Sign at the Polar Palace 
Hockey Arena in Valleyview, with the funds to come from the Community Service 
Miscellaneous Grant for the 2014/2015 invoice of $400.00 payable to Valleyview 
Minor Hockey. 
    CARRIED 
 

4



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 
 8.6 TOWN OF GRANDE CACHE – ARENA ADVERTISING 

ARENA 
ADVERTISING-
TOWN OF GC 

MOTION: 15.02.065. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council approve annual advertising of the Greenview sign at the Grande 
Cache Arena in Grande Cache in the amount of $375.00 payable to the Town of 
Grande Cache, with the funds to come from the Community Service Miscellaneous 
Grant. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.7 2014 AUDIT PLANNING LETTER 

2014 AUDIT LETTER MOTION: 15.02.066. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
 That Council accept the 2014 Audit Planning Letter from Hawkings EPP Dumont as 
information. 
    CARRIED 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
REPRESENTATIVES 

MOTION: 15.02.067. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
 That Council’s Audit Committee representatives set February 23, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. 
as the Audit Committee Meeting with the Auditor’s. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.8 2014 CAPITAL BUDGET CARRYOVERS TO THE 2015 CAPITAL & OPERATIONAL 
BUDGET 
 

2014 DEBOLT 
REVERSE OSMOSIS 
CAPITAL BUDGET 
CARRYOVER 

MOTION: 15.02.068. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
 That Council direct Administration to carryover $63,506.00 from the 2014 DeBolt 
Reverse Osmosis Capital Budget to the 2015 DeBolt Reverse Osmosis Capital 
Budget. 
    CARRIED 
 

2014 
WASTEWATER 
SCADA CAPITAL 
BUDGET 
CARRYOVER 

MOTION: 15.02.069. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
 That Council direct Administration to carryover $21,364.00 from the 2014 
Wastewater SCADA Capital Budget to the 2015 Environmental Services SCADA 
Operational Budget. 
    CARRIED 
 

TRACTOR 
REPLACEMENT 
UNITS 

MOTION: 15.02.070. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
 That Council direct Administration to reallocate $28,636.00 from the 2015 
Operations Capital Budget – Tractor Replacement Units T19 & T20 to the 2015 
Environmental Services SCADA Operational Budget. 
    CARRIED 
 
 

5



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 
AGRICULTURE 
SERVICES – 
CARRYOVER 

MOTION: 15.02.071. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
 That Council direct Administration to carryover $28,000.00 from the 2014 
Agriculture Services - 500 Gallon Sprayer Capital Budget to the 2015 Agriculture 
Services - 500 Gallon Sprayer Capital Budget. 
    CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Gervais recessed the meeting at 9:51 a.m. 
Reeve Gervais reconvened the meeting at 10:03 a.m. 
 

#4 
PUBLIC HEARING 

4.0  PUBLIC HEARING 

 4.1  BYLAW 14-736  RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) TO COUNTRY 
RESIDENTIAL ONE (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

 Chair Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw #14-736 at 10:03 a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDENCE Manager, Planning & Development  Sally Ann Rosson 
Applicant   Marjorie Chuppa 
 

APPLICANT(S) & 
PROPERTY 
OWNER(S) 
 

Applicant(s)   Wayne & Marjorie Chuppa 
Property Owner(s)  Wayne & Marjorie Chuppa 

INTRODUCTIONS The Chair asked each Council Member and Staff member to introduce themselves 
and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they should be 
disqualified from the hearing. Each Member’s reply was “No”. 
 

PURPOSE OF THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to hear submissions for and opposed to proposed 
Bylaw 14-736, being a bylaw of the MD of Greenview for the purpose to re-
designate the proposed 8.26 hectare (20.41 acre) +/-area as proposed within SE 1-
73-23-W5M from Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential One (CR-1) District. 
 

APPLICANTS 
PROPOSAL 

To allow the landowners to subdivide a second lot from the quarter section. 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL TO 
APPLICANT 

The Chair called for any questions to the Applicant from Council.  
None was heard 
 

THOSE IN FAVOUR The Chair requested that anyone in favour of the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

THOSE AGAINST The Chair requested that anyone against the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

REFERRAL AGENCY 
& ADJACENT 

The Planning & Development Coordinator provided a summary of the responses 
from the referral agencies. 

6



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 5 

 
LANDOWNERS 
COMMENTS 

 

 ATCO ELECTRIC 
No concerns. 
 
ATCO GAS 
No Concerns. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS 
No upgrades required. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 
 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None was heard. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
APPLICANT OR 
PRESENTER 

The Chair called for any questions from the Applicant or those that had spoken in 
favour or against the application with regards to the comments from Planning & 
Development, the referral agencies, or adjacent landowners.  
None were heard. 
 

APPLICANT(S) 
FINAL COMMENT 

The Chair called for any final comments from the Applicant(s).  
None were heard. 
 

FAIR AND 
IMPARTIAL 
HEARING 

The Chair asked the Applicant(s) if they have had a fair and impartial hearing, the 
Applicant(s) responded “Yes.” 
 

BYLAW 14-732 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 

Chair Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw #14-736 at 10:11 a.m. 

 4.2 BYLAW 14-737 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) TO INDUSTRIAL (I) 
DISTRICT 
 

 Chair Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw #14-737 at 10:12 a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDENCE Manager, Planning & Development  Sally Ann Rosson 
Applicant   Troy Gordon 
 

APPLICANT(S) & 
PROPERTY 
OWNER(S) 
 

Applicant(s)   Low Impact Inc. 
Property Owner(s)  Troy Gordon 
    Liz Gordon 
 

INTRODUCTIONS The Chair asked each Council Member and Staff member to introduce themselves 
and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they should be 
disqualified from the hearing. Each Member’s reply was “No”. 
 

7



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 6 

 
PURPOSE OF THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to hear submissions for and opposed to proposed 
Bylaw 14-737, being a bylaw of the MD of Greenview for the purpose to  re-
designate the proposed 13.68 hectare ± (33.80 acre) area as proposed within NE 
17-70-22-W5M from Agriculture (A) District to Industrial (I) District. 
 

APPLICANTS 
PROPOSAL 

To accommodate existing development onsite and growth of business. 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL TO 
APPLICANT 

The Chair called for any questions to the Applicant from Council.  
None was heard 
 

THOSE IN FAVOUR The Chair requested that anyone in favour of the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

THOSE AGAINST The Chair requested that anyone against the application come forward. 
Mr. Robert Wirth voiced concerns on how the MD is pushing through applications 
concerning the IDP 
 

REFERRAL AGENCY 
& ADJACENT 
LANDOWNERS 
COMMENTS 

The Planning & Development Coordinator provided a summary of the responses 
from the referral agencies. 

 ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
The department does not typically support isolated industrial development 
preferring instead to have the development industry in nature occur within 
established industrial parks or other urban industrial/commercial areas where 
existing highway and municipal road networks could safely and efficiently support 
traffic generated from industrial developments. A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) 
may be required prior to development. 
 
ATCO ELECTRIC 
No Concerns. 
 
EAST SMOKY GAS  
No concerns. 
 
TOWN OF VALLEYVIEW 
No concerns to accommodate the growth of an existing business, but does voice 
concern regarding clarity of the Intermunicipal Development Plan (IDP). 
 
ADJECENT LANDOWNERS – AL & ANNE WORTH 
Voice concerns regarding the interpretation in the IDP. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 
 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None was heard. 
 

8



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 7 

 
QUESTIONS FROM 
APPLICANT OR 
PRESENTER 

The Chair called for any questions from the Applicant or those that had spoken in 
favour or against the application with regards to the comments from Planning & 
Development, the referral agencies, or adjacent landowners.  
None were heard. 
 

APPLICANT(S) 
FINAL COMMENT 

The Chair called for any final comments from the Applicant(s).  
None were heard. 
 

FAIR AND 
IMPARTIAL 
HEARING 

The Chair asked the Applicant(s) if they have had a fair and impartial hearing, the 
Applicant(s) responded “Yes.” 
 

BYLAW 14-732 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 

Chair Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw #14-737 at 10:42 a.m. 

 4.3 BYLAW 14-738 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) TO COUNTRY 
RESIDENTIAL ONE (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

 Chair Gervais opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw #14-738 at 10:43 a.m. 
 

IN ATTENDENCE Manager, Planning & Development  Sally Ann Rosson 
Applicant Representation  Koreen Garant 
    Lee Garant 
 

APPLICANT(S) & 
PROPERTY 
OWNER(S) 
 

Applicant(s)   Bruce A. Beairsto 
Property Owner(s)  Douglas & Sharlene Kaetler 
     

INTRODUCTIONS The Chair asked each Council Member and Staff member to introduce themselves 
and asked Council Members if there were any reasons that they should be 
disqualified from the hearing. Each Member’s reply was “No”. 
 

PURPOSE OF THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the hearing is to hear submissions for and opposed to proposed 
Bylaw 14-737, being a bylaw of the MD of Greenview for the purpose to re-
designate the proposed Lot One (1) 5.31 hectares or 13.12 acres and Lot Two (2) 
7.90 hectares or 19.52 acre area as proposed under Plan 082 7469, Block 1, Lot 1, 
within SW 31-71-26-W5M from Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential One 
(CR-1) District. 
 

APPLICANTS 
PROPOSAL 

To accommodate the proposed subdivision. 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL TO 
APPLICANT 

The Chair called for any questions to the Applicant from Council.  
None was heard 
 

THOSE IN FAVOUR The Chair requested that anyone in favour of the application come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

9



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 8 

 
THOSE AGAINST The Chair requested that anyone against the application come forward. 

None came forward. 
 

REFERRAL AGENCY 
& ADJACENT 
LANDOWNERS 
COMMENTS 

The Planning & Development Coordinator provided a summary of the responses 
from the referral agencies. 

 ALBERTA TRANSPORTATION 
The department does not typically support isolated industrial development 
preferring instead to have the development industry in nature occur within 
established industrial parks or other urban industrial/commercial areas where 
existing highway and municipal road networks could safely and efficiently support 
traffic generated from industrial developments. A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) 
may be required prior to development. 
 
ATCO ELECTRIC 
No Concerns. 
 
EAST SMOKY GAS  
No concerns. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 
 

The Chair called for any questions from Council. 
None was heard. 
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
APPLICANT OR 
PRESENTER 

The Chair called for any questions from the Applicant or those that had spoken in 
favour or against the application with regards to the comments from Planning & 
Development, the referral agencies, or adjacent landowners.  
None were heard. 
 

APPLICANT(S) 
FINAL COMMENT 

The Chair called for any final comments from the Applicant(s).  
None were heard. 
 

FAIR AND 
IMPARTIAL 
HEARING 

The Chair asked the Applicant(s) if they have had a fair and impartial hearing, the 
Applicant(s) responded “Yes.” 
 

BYLAW 14-732 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ADJOURNED 
 

Chair Gervais adjourned the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw #14-738 at 10:50 a.m. 

 Reeve Gervais recessed the meeting at 10:51 a.m. 
Reeve Gervais reconvened the meeting at 11:03 a.m. 
 
 
 
 

10



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 9 

 
#5 
DELEGATIONS 

5.0 DELEGATIONS 

 5.1 2014 VALLEYVIEW POLICING STATS 

2014 POLCING 
STATS 

MOTION: 15.02.072. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council accept for information the 2014 Valleyview Policing Stats 
presentation. 
    CARRIED 
 

#6  
BYLAWS 

6.0  BYLAWS 

 6.1   BYLAW 14-736  RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) TO COUNTRY 
RESIDENTIAL ONE (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW 14-736      
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 15.02.073. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 14-736, re-designate the proposed 
8.26 hectare (20.41 acre) +/-area as proposed within SE 1-73-23-W5M from 
Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential One (CR-1) District. 
   CARRIED 
 

BYLAW 14-736     
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 15.02.074. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 14-736, re-designate the proposed 
8.26 hectare (20.41 acre) +/-area as proposed within SE 1-73-23-W5M from 
Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential One (CR-1) District. 
  CARRIED 
 

 6.2 BYLAW 14-737 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) TO INDUSTRIAL (I) 
DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW 14-737   
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 15.02.075. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 14-737, re-designate the proposed 
13.68 hectare ± (33.80 acre) area as proposed within NE 17-70-22-W5M from 
Agriculture (A) District to Industrial (I) District. 
      CARRIED 
 

BYLAW 14-737       
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 15.02.076. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 14-737, re-designate the proposed 
13.68 hectare ± (33.80 acre) area as proposed within NE 17-70-22-W5M from 
Agriculture (A) District to Industrial (I) District. 
   CARRIED 
 
 
 

11



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 10 

 
 6.3  BYLAW 14-738 RE-DESIGNATE FROM AGRICULTURE (A) TO COUNTRY 

RESIDENTIAL ONE (CR-1) DISTRICT 
 

BYLAW 14-738      
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 15.02.077. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 14-738, re-designate the proposed 
Lot One (1) 5.31 hectares or 13.12 acres and Lot Two (2) 7.90 hectares or 19.52 
acre area as proposed under Plan 082 7469, Block 1, Lot 1, within SW 31-71-26-
W5M from Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential One (CR-1) District. 
   CARRIED 
 
 

BYLAW 14-738      
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 15.02.078. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 14-738, re-designate the proposed 
Lot One (1) 5.31 hectares or 13.12 acres and Lot Two (2) 7.90 hectares or 19.52 
acre area as proposed under Plan 082 7469 Block 1, Lot 1, within SW 31-71-26-
W5M from Agriculture (A) District to Country Residential One (CR-1) District. 
   CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Gervais recessed the meeting at 11:52 a.m. 
Reeve Gervais reconvened the meeting at 1:06 p.m. 
 

 8.9 EQUIPMENT REGISTRY LISTING 

POLICY PO-07 
REVISION 

MOTION: 15.02.079. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
 That Council direct staff to revise the Equipment Hiring Policy OP-07 to allow 
administration to apply percentage rates approved by Council from the annual 
Alberta Roadbuilders & Heavy Construction Association (arhca) to formulate 
fairness and transparency in the equipment hiring process. 
    CARRIED 
 

 8.10 ELK QUOTA HUNT RESOLUTION TO ALBERTA ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPAL 
DISTRICTS & COUNTIES (AAMDC) 
 

ELK QUOTA HUNT 
RESOLUTION 

MOTION: 15.02.080. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
 That Council approve the Elk Quota Hunt Resolution for submission to the 
February 13th, 2015 AAMDC District Meeting. 
    CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith vacated the meeting at 1:47 p.m. 
Councillor Bill Smith re-entered the meeting at 1:48 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

12



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 11 

 
 8.11  CAO / MANAGERS’ REPORT 

 
CAO / MANAGER’S 
REPORT 

MOTION: 15.02.081. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON  
That Council accept the CAO Report as information. 
   CARRIED   
     

#9 
COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & 
REPORTS 

9.1  COUNCILLORS’ BUSINESS & REPORTS 
 
 

 9.2  MEMBERS’ REPORT:  Council provided an update on activities and events both 
attended and upcoming, including the following: 
 

 DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
Attended the Grande Prairie Art Gallery 
Attended the Grande Prairie Live Theatre 
Attended the Grande Prairie 100th Anniversary Chamber Ball 
Attended the Policy Review Committee 
 

 COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
Attended the Smoky Applied Research & Demonstration Association (SARDA) 
 

 COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
Attended the Crooked Creek Recreation Club Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
Attended the Agricultural Services Board (ASB) Conference 
Attended a Farm Tech Conference 
Attended the Alberta Agricultural Association Conference 
 

 MOTION: 15.02.082. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council request Administration to research the cost and installation of a  
digital board for Grovedale area. 
   CARRIED 
 

 COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
Attended the Valleyview Recreation Board Meeting 
Attended the Heart River Foundation Meeting 
Attended the Policy Review Committee Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
Attended the Greenview Regional Waste Management Commission (GRWMC) 
Meeting 
Attended the Valleyview Medical Clinic Meeting 
Attended the Policy Review Committee 

13



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting  February 10, 2015 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 COUNCILLOR GEORGE DELORME 
Nothing to report. 
 

 9.1  REEVE’S REPORT: 
 

 REEVE DALE GERVAIS: 
Attended the Greenview Regional Waste Management Commission (GRWMC) 
Meeting 
Attended the Whitecourt Snowmobile Rally  
Attended the Little Smoky Cemetery Meeting 
Met with the Rural Medical Review Committee in Peace River 
 

 Councillor George Delorme vacated the meeting at 3:01 p.m. 
 

#10 
CORRESPONDENCE 

10.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

 MOTION: 15.02.083. Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE TOM BURTON 
That Council accept the correspondence as presented for information. 
  CARRIED 
   

# 11  
IN CAMERA 
 

11.1 IN CAMERA CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 There was no In Camera presented. 
 

#12 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

12.0  ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION: 15.02.084. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That this meeting adjourn at 3:03 p.m. 
  CARRIED  

 
 
 
 
__________________________________                                      ______________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                                      REEVE 
 

14



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Teepee Creek Ag Events Centre 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: CAO Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: MH 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council accept the presentation from the Teepee Creek Stampede Association as information. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Teepee Creek Stampede Association would like to update Council on the progress of the Teepee Creek Ag 
Events Centre. 
 
Council will recall that the Association requested $250,000.00 under Greenview’s Community Grants Program 
for this project. Council denied funding the project at any level. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – N/A 
 
Benefits – N/A 
 
Disadvantages – N/A 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
There are no costs associated with Staff’s recommendation. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Presentation 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
15



Fe
br

ua
ry

 24
, 2

01
5

MA
CK

 E
RN

O
PA

M 
BA

DG
ER

 

Te
ep

ee
 C

re
ek

 S
ta

m
pe

de
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

16



17



18



19



Te
ep

ee
 C

re
ek

 S
ta

m
pe

de
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
•

M
or

e 
th

an
 ju

st
 th

e 
St

am
pe

de
 

•
M

ai
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
in

 o
ur

 a
re

a 
•

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

al
l 

•
Sk

at
in

g 
R

in
k 

•
R

od
eo

 G
ro

un
ds

 
•

A
g 

Ev
en

ts
 C

en
tre

 –
C

O
M

IN
G

 S
O

O
N

!
•

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
ou

r l
oc

al
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
•

Sc
ho

ol
 P

la
yg

ro
un

d 
•

Sc
ho

ol
 T

rip
s 

•
Fa

m
ily

 D
an

ce
s 

•
St

am
pe

de
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
B

oa
rd

 

20



•E
xc

itin
g P

ro
jec

t –
5+

 ye
ar

s i
n t

he
 m

ak
ing

 
•N

ew
 gr

ou
p o

f v
olu

nte
er

s 
•P

rin
cip

all
y a

n A
gr

icu
ltu

ra
l E

ve
nts

 C
en

tre
•Y

ea
r R

ou
nd

 O
pp

or
tun

ity
 

•P
ro

jec
t P

lan
 

•T
ota

l B
ud

ge
t &

 P
ha

se
s 

21



U
pd

at
e 

-
La

st
 h

er
e 

2 
ye

ar
s a

go
 

-
Pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

on
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f f
ro

nt
s 

-
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

-
2

ye
ar

s a
go

 -
$2

50
,0

00
 (t

ot
al

 $
70

0,
00

0)
 

-
To

da
y 

-$
1.

46
M

-
R

es
ea

rc
h

-
C

on
tra

ct
 si

gn
ed

 w
ith

 p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
m

pa
ny

 (M
ar

ch
 2

01
4)

-
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 IS

 G
O

IN
G

 U
P!

!

22



•C
om

mi
tte

e F
un

dr
ais

ing
 E

ffo
rts

 -
$1

15
,00

0
•R

aff
les

 –
so

ld 
ou

t th
e l

as
t 2

 ye
ar

s!
•S

uc
ce

ss
ful

 M
en

’s 
Ni

gh
t

•S
ch

oo
l P

en
ny

 D
riv

e 
•O

the
r c

lub
s s

up
po

rtin
g 

•C
or

po
ra

te 
Sp

on
so

rsh
ip 

-$
16

0,0
00

 co
mm

itte
d 

•C
ou

nty
 of

 G
P 

Co
mm

itm
en

t -
$9

00
,00

0
•

Al
be

rta
 C

FE
P 

gr
an

t -
$1

25
,00

0
•T

OT
AL

 C
ON

FI
RM

ED
 T

O 
DA

TE
:  $

1.4
6M

23



•
Or

igi
na

l P
lan

 –
Sp

rin
g 2

01
3 

•
Re

se
ar

ch
 –

Ar
en

a T
ou

rs 
•

Vi
sit

ed
 30

 pl
us

 fa
cil

itie
s 

•
Ve

ry 
wo

rth
wh

ile
 an

d i
nfo

rm
ati

ve
 

•
W

ill 
he

lp 
us

 bu
ild

 a 
be

tte
r, m

or
e 

fun
cti

on
al 

fac
ilit

y 
•

Ac
tiv

ely
 re

se
ar

ch
ing

 ev
er

yth
ing

 fr
om

 in
ter

ior
 

se
tup

 to
 du

st 
co

ntr
ol 

to 
he

ati
ng

 m
eth

od
s 

24



•
Si

te 
Pl

an
 co

mp
let

ed
 

•
Co

re
 sa

mp
les

•
Gr

ou
nd

 B
re

ak
ing

 du
rin

g 2
01

3 T
P 

St
am

pe
de

•
Di

rt 
W

or
k –

Bu
ild

ing
 P

ad
 P

re
pa

ra
tio

ns
 

•
Fa

ll 2
01

4 –
sta

rte
d P

ha
se

 1,
 pa

rt 
1 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 

25



26



27



N
ov

em
be

r 5
th

, 2
01

4

D
ec

em
be

r 3
rd

, 2
01

4

D
ec

em
be

r 1
1,

 2
01

4

28



Fe
br

ua
ry

 1
6th

, 2
01

5

29



•
Th

e r
igh

t fa
cil

ity
 fo

r t
he

 co
mm

un
ity

 
•

Ec
on

om
ic 

Dr
ive

r f
or

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
& 

gr
ow

th 
 

•
It i

s w
ell

 su
pp

or
ted

 -
Le

tte
rs 

of 
su

pp
or

t
•

Re
cre

ati
on

 &
 E

xe
rci

se
 op

po
rtu

nit
y 

•
Yo

uth
 in

 th
e a

re
a 

•
Op

po
rtu

nit
y f

or
 en

tire
 re

gio
n –

no
t ju

st 
the

 
Co

un
ty 

of 
Gr

an
de

 P
ra

irie
!

30



•
Ph

as
e 1

, p
ar

t 1
 p

lan
s –

we
 w

ill 
“r

ig
ht

-s
ize

” t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t t
o 

ou
r b

ud
ge

t 
•

St
am

pe
de

 B
oa

rd
 &

 A
g 

Ev
en

ts
 C

om
m

itt
ee

•
Op

er
at

in
g 

wi
th

in
 o

ur
 m

ea
ns

 
•

W
ill 

no
t t

ak
e o

n 
de

bt
 

•
Ce

nt
ra

l A
B 

Pr
oj

ec
t o

n A
re

na
 To

ur
 

•
Op

en
in

g 
Sp

rin
g 

20
15

•
Ph

as
e 1

, p
ar

t 2
 p

lan
s –

Su
m

m
er

 20
15

•
Ph

as
e 2

 p
lan

s

31



•
W

ha
t e

lse
 ar

e w
e w

or
kin

g o
n?

•
Gr

an
ts 

-C
FE

P 
Pr

ov
inc

ial
 G

ra
nt 

 
•

Co
mm

un
ity

 F
utu

re
s 

•
UF

A 
Ge

t’n
’G

ive
Co

nte
st 

•
Co

mm
itte

e F
un

dr
ais

ing
 ef

for
ts 

co
nti

nu
e 

•
Co

rp
or

ate
 D

on
or

s 
•

Pe
rso

na
l a

nd
 F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

32



-
Al

re
ad

y b
ec

om
ing

 an
 ec

on
om

ic 
dr

ive
r

-
Ha

ve
 ha

d t
on

s o
f in

ter
es

t in
 th

e p
ro

jec
t 

fro
m 

the
 lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
y a

nd
 su

rro
un

din
g 

ar
ea

 
-

Le
tte

rs 
of 

Su
pp

or
t 

-
De

ma
nd

 fo
r u

sa
ge

 is
 th

er
e 

33



•
Di

ffe
re

nc
e M

ak
er

•
YO

U 
ca

n 
all

ow
 u

s t
o 

bu
ild

 a 
m

or
e 

fu
nc

tio
na

l f
ac

ilit
y t

ha
t c

an
 b

et
te

r h
an

dl
e 

ev
en

ts
 

•
Gi

ve
s f

ac
ilit

y m
or

e i
m

pa
ct

 
•

A 
be

tte
r l

on
g 

te
rm

 fa
cil

ity
 

•
Bu

ild
 it

 ri
gh

t t
he

 fi
rs

t t
im

e 
•

10
0th

ye
ar

 Te
ep

ee
 C

re
ek

 S
ta

m
pe

de
 an

d 
be

yo
nd

 

34



Ma
ck

 E
rn

o,
 P

as
t P

re
sid

en
t

Te
ep

ee
 C

re
ek

 S
ta

m
pe

de
 A

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
78

0-
89

7-
80

48
, m

er
no

@
jad

ec
as

h.
co

m

Pa
m

 B
ad

ge
r, 

TP
 A

g 
Ev

en
ts

 C
en

tre
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 C
ha

ir 
78

0-
88

2-
14

97
, s

pi
rit

st
ra

w@
ho

tm
ail

.co
m

35

mailto:merno@jadecash.com
mailto:spiritstraw@hotmail.com


 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: April 14th 2015 Council Meeting Cancellation 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: CAO Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: LK 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – MGA, Pg. 108, 193(3), If council changes the date, time or place of a regular scheduled meeting, 
the municipality must give at least 24 hours’ notice of the change 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) –  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council cancel the April 14th, 2015 Regular Council meeting due to Council attending the Community 
Planning Association of Alberta (CPAA). 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Community Planning Association of Alberta is an organization dedicated to the promotion of community 
planning in the Province of Alberta. Through various means, the Association provides a forum for the discussion 
of community planning-related concepts, ideas and issues with a view towards solutions. Each year, the CPAA 
hosts an annual planning conference. Conference themes stress the importance of community planning as well 
as the inter-relationships between land use planning and economic development, tourism and recreation 
 
The CPAA will be held in Red Deer, Alberta from April 13-15, 2015. As a majority of Council members will be 
attending this event, the Regular Council meeting on April 14th will lack quorum. 
 
Any meeting dates cancelled by Council will be advertised as per the MGA so that the public is aware of the 
change. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council may choose to reschedule the Regular Council meeting.  
 
Benefits – That Council will be able to attend the CPAA. 
 
Disadvantages – The following Council Meeting may have a larger agenda. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
36



 

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
N/A 

2     Request for Decision 
37



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Canfor Requests 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning/Operations GM: GG PRESENTER: GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC 
PLAN: 

 FINANCIAL REVIEW:  

 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) - NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy - NA 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council reject the request from Canfor to increase the maximum Gross Vehicle Weight to 
68,000 kilograms under non-frozen conditions on the Forestry Trunk Road. 
 
MOTION:  That Council reject the request made by Canfor to reconstruct the Forestry Trunk Road from 
kilometer 80 to kilometer 115 over the next three years. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:  
 
The Forestry Trunk Road (FTR) has been identified as a critical link between Hwy 43 and Hwy 40 for the general 
public including recreational, production operation, field exploration development and road users conducting 
business within Greenview. Road construction and road maintenance play a key role in maintaining a safe cost 
effective roadway suitable for carrying heavy loads associated with industrial use. Canfor (CFP), similar to years 
past are requesting axle weight increases on the FTR. These increased haul weights requested by CFP have been 
historically denied by Greenview. The increased maintenance costs and public safety would have been 
considered as major factors in past decisions. CFP currently hauls 66,000 kilograms on non-frozen roads with no 
restriction during frozen winter road conditions. If required CFP bonds a portion of roadway and pays for some 
additional maintenance or repairs as required, specific to CFP’s activities. CFP has been managing legal loads 
during summer & winter as requested by Greenview. Currently axle weights on the FTR are regulated to a non-
frozen GVW of 66,000 kg. CFP’s latest letter indicates a request that would increase non-frozen weight 
restrictions from the current GVW of 66,000 kg to a GVW of 68,000 kg.  
 
CFP’s long term request in the letter would require Greenview to upgrade three sections of the FTR which Canfor 
consistently utilizes for their haul program. Canfor has asked that Greenview include these upgraded sections in 
the work plan over the next three year period with CFP discussing potential contributions to follow. The three 
primary sections of FTR upgrades requested by CFP were located from km 80 to 88 (2015); km 88 to 92 (2016); 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
38



 

and, km 92 to 115 (2017) totaling 35 kilometers over the next three years. CFP’s request is to have a road 
structure built to support loads of 100,000 kg. If this is not acceptable, CFP will build their own road that will 
parallel the FTR in this area. The FTR is geographically challenging and very little clay based materials are present 
to help the related costs to upgrade and widen the road structure to sustain the weights requested by Canfor. 
 
Administration had a preliminary cost estimate completed based on a similar road structure design as Canfor 
completed in 2014. The initial estimate did not include the related costs associated to traffic control, possible oil 
& gas line lowering or centerline culvert extensions due to road widening. However the majority of road building 
materials to be hauled in from a distance was included for a minimum $1.1 million per kilometer. At 35 kms this 
totals $38.5 million. The combination of mixed FTR users with the increase traffic counts is only expected to grow.  
 
Introducing Canfor’s additional overloads and heavier weights to the FTR will most certainly alter Greenview’s 
operational road repair program in those areas upgraded to support those requested weights. If Greenview sets 
precedent to upgrade the requested sections of the FTR to support CFP’s request, Greenview may expect similar 
requests from other industrial users. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council could allow the increased GVW weights of 68,000 kg.  
Council could plan for the requested upgraded sections and/or a portion of, to be upgraded. 
Council could have administration further investigate the cost related difference of extra work needed over what 
Greenview may repair on the FTR inside Canfor’s first requested 8 km’s. 
Council could agree to concentrate the majority of the 2015 budgeted FTR upgrades in the first 8 km’s requested 
but not to Canfor’s road structure specification. 
 
Benefits – Consistent FTR upgrades that benefit all users.  
Policing one set of guidelines for all users.  
Continued roadway safety improvements all along the FTR. 
 
Disadvantages – Increasing axle weights on one section(s) of the FTR roadway may trigger other increased axle 
weight requests. 
Road upgrades that support suggested weights will increase traffic speeds and decrease safety. 
Snow & ice quality control for larger, heavier vehicles and increased maintenance cost of wider roadways. 
Road subgrade and surface repairs would be more substantially involved. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
If Council supports the re-grade request, monies to come from approved FTR Capital Funding or other sources 
such as Reserves. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Canfor Letter 
• Re-grade location map 

2     Request for Decision 
39



40



41



42



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Council’s Policy Structure 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: CAO Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: MH 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council adopt the proposed policy structure as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
On February 17th, 2015 Committee of the Whole made a motion to recommend to Council that the noted motion 
be passed. 
 
Council’s current policy structure is composed of two parts: 

1. A “Policy” document which contains the broad purpose of the Policy and is approved by Council; and, 
2. A “Procedures” document that contains procedures related to the policy and is accepted by Council for 

information. 
 
Staff understands that this is a relatively new structure; however, is recommending a change. In many ways, the 
recommended change is simply a return to Council’s Policy Structure where all purposes and governance 
procedures related to the Policy are contained in a single document that is ultimately approved by Council. 
 
Staff is basing this recommendation on two principles: 

1. Policy is one of the primary tools through which Council exercises it’s governance role; and, 
2. It is recognized that Council’s role is governance and Staff’s role is administration. And further, that 

Council should not be administrating and Staff should not be governing. 
 
Staff believes that the current structure has the potential to blur these lines and erode some of Council’s 
governance role, while encouraging Council to participate in some administrative tasks. Staff does not see either 
of these events as positively contributing to a healthy Staff/Council relationship for the betterment of Greenview. 
To be clear, this is not about oversight or the questioning of Administration, which are both roles of Council. 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
43



 

Under the current structure Council approves the “Policy” document. Council then views the related 
“Procedures” and does not approve them, but does accept them for information. As the “Procedures” tend to 
contain information of direct importance to defining or fulfilling the respective policy purpose, Staff feels that 
these should have approval by Council as well. 
 
As Council is only adopting the “Procedures” as information this creates the impression that the procedures are 
administrative and can be amended by Administration (excepting the Reserves Policy where it is explicitly stated 
that the Procedures may only be approved and amended by Council). There a number of “Procedures” that depict 
the roles and authorities of Council and various Staff such as the CAO. Staff believes that many of these should 
be governed by Council and not subject to amendment by Staff. As an example, Staff should not be governing 
the role of Council by being able to adjust “Procedures”. Likewise, Administration should be limited in some of 
its ability to determine what Administration must or may do. 
 
Under the current format, Council would see amendments to “Procedures” as well as discuss them (at both 
Council and the Policy Review Committee), so could prevent negative scenarios portrayed in the preceding 
paragraph. This raises the question as to whether these are actually administrative procedures or if they are 
governance issues. If Council moves to approve “Procedures” rather than accept them as information, then there 
is no point to having two separate documents.  
 
Likewise, purely administrative tasks would be removed from the “Procedures” entirely. These Staff Directives 
would remain the role of Staff and be altered accordingly to ensure that Council’s Policies could be carried out 
efficiently and effectively. 
 
Should the Committee of the Whole agree with Staff’s opinion, Staff will bring this item to the next Regular 
Council Meeting for formal approval and will start drafting policies accordingly. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council may also choose to maintain the current Policy Structure. 
 
Benefits – Following the recommended Policy Structure changes will allow several current policies being drafted 
to be drafted in a format that Staff feels is more efficient and positive for the organization. 
 
Disadvantages – Some policies have been approved in the current structure. These would need to be redone. 
Staff does not feel that this is a large issue as several of these policies (in the opinion of Staff) need to be re-
visited anyway and all policies are eventually reviewed on a cyclical basis. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
There are no costs associated with Staff’s recommendation. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• NA 

2     Request for Decision 
44



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Employee/Consultant Temporary Housing Policy  
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services GM: RO PRESENTER: RO 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite)  
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – Policy Number 1006 – Employee/Consultant Housing 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve the revised Employee/Consultant Temporary Housing Policy Number 1006.  
 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
At an In-Camera discussion with Council during the latter part of 2014, CAO Haugen discussed possible revisions 
to the Employee/Consultant Housing Policy based on the following criteria: 1) changing the length of time for 
temporary housing from six (6) months to eight (8) months; 2) the first month’s rent would be free; 3) the tenant 
would pay Greenview a reduced rent of $600.00 per month for seven (7) of the eight (8) months; 4) rent rate to 
include utilities.  
 
The revisions to the employee/consultant housing policy have been discussed and Staff are, keeping in mind the 
range of salaries throughout the municipality and in an effort to be fair across the organization, recommend 
$600.00/month rent for temporary housing. Staff is recommending a set rate as accommodation options vary 
(ex: hotel vs townhouse). The current rate is no cost for six months. 
 
During the discussions on the revised policy at the Policy Review Committee meeting, there was a question as to 
the cost of monthly utilities for the townhouses. Administration reviewed the utility invoices for the leased 
townhouses, the average monthly cost of utilities including gas, power and Town of Valleyview utilities is 
$225.00/month.   
 
The criteria noted above has been included in the revisions to Policy Number 1006. Management is asking for 
approval from Council for the revised policy before hiring another employee that may need temporary housing. 
This will eliminate a potential for misunderstanding around the old vs the revised policy. Section 5 of the current 
policy mentions rent but it does not indicate the amount of rent nor the timeline involved.  
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
45



 

Administration believes that the concerns noted above have been taken into account with the revisions to the 
policy. 
 
Once the accommodation period has concluded, employees remaining in the accommodation then pay the full 
monthly costs of that accommodation moving forward. 
 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council may choose not to accept the revised Employee/Consultant Temporary Housing Policy as 
presented to Council. Council may make further changes to the policy. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of Council approving the revised policy is to endeavour to complete the approval process 
for these revision as soon as possible to eliminate potential conflict with new hires.  
 
Disadvantages – If Council does not approve the revised policy, the current policy will continue until such time 
as revisions are accepted by Council. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Cost for housing is included in the 2015 approved budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Policy Number 1006 – Effective Date June 2, 2013 (old) 
• Policy Number 1006 - …………………. (new) 

2     Request for Decision 
46



47



48



 
 

 
 

P O
 L I C Y 

 

Title:  EMPLOYEE/CONSULTANT TEMPORARY HOUSING 

 

Policy No: 

Approval: Council 

Effective Date:   _____________ 
 
Revision Date: Jan. 28, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement:  The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 provides furnished rental 
housing to assist in the recruitment of staff and to facilitate the provision of programs and 
services to Greenview, for period of eight (8) months. 

 
The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, where possible will provide furnished 
accommodations to consultants in order to reduce costs, for a period of time not normally to 
exceed six (6) months. 

 
Purpose: The Employee/Consultant Temporary Housing Policy establishes clear guidelines 
and procedures for a broad range of Greenview temporary staff/consultant housing programs 
and services, creating a single, authoritative source for information and regulation. 

1006 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Policy 1006, Effective June 25, 2013 Page 1 

 

49



 
Principles: 

1. Greenview’s role in staff housing addresses market and inventory gaps that limit 
affordable housing options and that hinder the recruitment of staff. Staffing 
Greenview’s positions is essential for government service delivery to the 
Municipal District. 

 
2. Greenview’s role in the provision of staff housing supports and recognizes the 

private sector. 
 

3. Greenview will identify its staff/consultant housing requirements based on the 
overall recruitment process and its priorities. 

 
4. Greenview is committed to allocating staff housing in an open and fair process, 

which is consistent across all regions of Greenview. 
 

5. Greenview recognizes that the market value of staff housing should be recovered 
from those using this service through the payment of rent. As such, Greenview may 
provide staff or consultant housing for up to eight (8) months. The first month of 
temporary housing will be at no cost to the new employee, the other seven (7) 
months of temporary housing will be at $600.00 per month utilities included. The 
rent may be adjusted at the Chief Administrative Officer’s discretion.    

 
6. Greenview considers staff accommodations a privilege, and not a right or benefit of 

employment. 
 

7. The rental rate structure for Greenview housing is designed to support and 
stimulate the emergence of private affordable rental and markets in Greenview 
communities. Once viable and sustainable markets are established, it will no 
longer be necessary for Greenview to provide staff rental housing. In order to 
assist in that transition, Greenview will continue to make limited amounts of staff 
housing available to staff. 

 

  
 

Approved by Motion:_____________ 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
Policy 1006, Effective June 25, 2013 Page 2 

 

50



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Equipment and Vehicle Replacement Policy 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services/Legislative Services GM: RO PRESENTER: RO 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – Current Policy Op-06 (copy attached). 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve the revised Equipment and Vehicle Replacement Policy Number 4006 and 
rescind Policy Op-06. 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
At the regular Council meeting on January 13th, Administration brought forward a RFD for Council to approve the 
purchase of four (4) new Finning Cat Graders. Three (3) of the new graders were 2014 models and one (1) was a 
2015 model. During the discussion Council was concerned about purchasing the 2014 model year equipment in 
2015 due to the potential for the equipment being replaced at an earlier year than set forth by Policy Op-06, 
Section 6. 
 
Policy Op-6, Section 6 simply notes: “The replacement criteria to be used is as follows:”  
 
The new Equipment and Vehicle Replacement Policy 4006, Section 6 states: “Vehicle and/or equipment will be 
evaluated for replacement based on the date of delivery to Greenview and the following criteria: …”  
 
The purpose of the revision is to clarify that date of service for the equipment or vehicle will commence from 
date of delivery to Greenview instead of being based on the model year of the unit.  
 
The policy number has changed due to the new policy numbering format adopted by Council in 2013. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council may choose not to approve the revision to the Equipment and Replacement Policy. 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
51



 

Benefits – The benefits of the Committee recommending the policy revision to Council are to ensure that the 
policy is clear regarding the time line when a piece of equipment or a vehicle is to be replaced. 
 
Disadvantages – None. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Policy Number Op-06 (old) 
• Policy Number 4006 (new) 

 

2     Request for Decision 
52



 P O
 L I C Y 

Title: EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 
 
Policy No: 4006 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  ___________ 
 
Revised Date: _____________  

 
 

 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
 

 
Policy Statement: The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) requires  
equipment and vehicles to operate the services provided, and shall ensure funds are available 
in the future to replace the equipment and vehicles by establishing an exclusive capital 
reserve fund. 
 
 
 
Purpose: The purpose of the policy is to establish a capital reserve fund for the purpose of 
replacing capital equipment and vehicles for the Municipality's operations. 
 
 
 
Principles:  

1. Administration will recommend the type of equipment and vehicle(s) that will be 
required to be replaced on a regular basis, to ensure the services of the 
Municipality are provided as directed by Council. 
 

2. Administration will establish a Capital Reserve Replacement rate, taking into 
consideration the life span of the equipment and vehicle(s) and the estimated 
replacement cost. 

 
3. Equipment and Vehicle Reserve Replacement charges will be transferred to a 

capital reserve fund for equipment and vehicle replacement. 
 
4. Interest earned from the vehicle and equipment reserve will be allocated to the 

reserve at year end. 
 
5. Council shall authorize the transfer of funds to and from the reserve. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy xxxx, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 

53



 P O
 L I C Y 

 
 
 
Approved by Motion:    ________________ 

 
6. Vehicle and/or equipment will be evaluated for replacement based on the date of 

delivery to Greenview and the following criteria: 
 
    

VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT TYPE TIME IN SERVICE 
Light/Medium Duty Vehicles 5 years / 150,000 kms 
Medium Duty Diesel Vehicles 5 years / 300,000 kms 
Heavy Duty Vehicles 10 years / 300,000 kms 
Graders 5 years / 7,500 hours 
Loaders 10 years / 10,000 hours 
Backhoes 5 years / 5,000 hours 
Track Excavators 6,000 hours 
ATV’s 10 years 
Tractors 10,000 hours 
Mowers Condition 
Fire Trucks 15 years 
Rescue Vans 10 years 
Water Tankers 15 years 

 Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 15 years 
Breathing Air Compressors 20 years 
Thermal Imaging Cameras 10 years 
Lift Stations Condition 
Water Pumps Condition 
UTV’s 15 years 

        
 

 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy xxxx, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 2 

54



 

 

 
M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section: 
 
OPERATIONS 

SERVICES 

 
POLICY NUMBER:   OP 06 

 

POLICY TITLE: EQUIPMENT  AND VEHICLE REPLACEMENT Page 1 of 2 

 

Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number:   09.12.661 

 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
To establish a capital reserve fund for the purpose of replacing capital equipment and vehicles for the 
Municipality's operations. 
 
POLICY: 

 
The Municipality requires equipment and vehicles to operate the services provided, and shall ensure 
funds are available in the future to replace the equipment and vehicles by establishing an exclusive 
capital reserve fund. 
 
1.0 Administration will recommend the type of equipment and vehicle(s) that will be required 

 to be replaced on a regular basis, to ensure the services of the Municipality are provided as 
directed by Council. 

 
 2.0 Administration will establish a Capital Reserve Replacement rate, taking into consideration the 

life span of the equipment and vehicle(s) and the estimated replacement cost. 
 
3.0 Equipment and Vehicle Reserve Replacement charges will be transferred to a capital reserve 

fund for equipment and vehicle replacement. 
 
 4.0 Interest earned from the vehicle and equipment reserve will be allocated to the reserve at year 

end. 
 
 5.0 Council shall authorize the transfer of funds to and from the reserve. 
 
6.0 The replacement criteria to be used is as follows: 
 

Light/medium duty vehicles 5 years / 150,000 kms 
Medium duty diesel vehicles 5 years / 300,000 kms 
Heavy duty vehicles 10 years / 300,000 kms 
Graders 5 years / 7,500 hours 
Loaders 10 years / 10,000 hours 
Backhoes 5 years / 5,000 hours 
Track Excavators 6,000 hours 
ATV’s 10 years 
Tractors 10,000 hours 
Mowers Condition 

55

RosemaryOffrey
Highlight



Fire trucks 15 years 
Rescue vans 10 years 
Water tankers 15 years 
Self contained breathing 
apparatus 

15 years 

Breathing air compressors 20 years 
Thermal imaging cameras 10 years 
Lift stations Condition 
Water pumps Condition 
UTV’s 15 years 

 
7.0 Other capital equipment will be replaced as dictated by condition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_( Original signed copy on file)                ________________________________________ 
REEVE   C.A.O. 
 
 

56



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Wapiti Corridor Multi-Use Plan 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: CAO Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: MH 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council accept the January 29th, 2015 letter from the Wapiti Corridor Planning Society for 
information as presented. 
 
MOTION: That Council deny the funding requested by the Wapiti Corridor Planning Society for costs related to 
amending/reprinting the Plan. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Please see the attached letter from the Wapiti Corridor Planning Society (WCPS) dated January 29th, 2015. 
 
The letter informs the MD that the WCPS has opted to remove the MD of Greenview from the Wapiti Corridor 
Multi Use Plan. 
 
As Council is aware, Greenview submitted a list of concerns with the Plan as well as a list of concerns compiled 
from local residents. Greenview was awaiting a formal response to those concerns. The Corridor had several 
options (amend the Plan, maintain the current Plan, remove Greenview from the Plan) and opted to remove 
Greenview from the Plan while maintaining the remainder of the Plan north of the river. 
 
The WCPS is also requesting that Greenview provide funding in the amount of $10,000.00 to cover costs related 
to the amending/reprinting the Plan. Staff is recommending that Council deny this request. The WCPS chose not 
to alter the Plan to respond to the concerns raised by Greenview and local residents. As such, Administration 
does not feel that Greenview’s actions necessitated the costs incurred by removing Greenview from the Plan. 
This recommendation would be different had amendments to the Plan been made to address the concerns raised 
and if Greenview was still a party to the Plan. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   

Greenview, Alberta     1 
57



 

 
Options – Council may choose to provide the funding requested by the WCPS. This funding could be taken from 
Contingency. Council may also choose to attempt to re-engage with the WCPS and attempt to reverse their 
decision. 
 
Benefits – Council will save costs by not contributing further resources to a Plan of which it is no longer a part. 
 
Disadvantages – Not providing the requested funding may put additional stress on the WCPS and the partners 
still involved with the Plan. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Should Council deny funding, there are no associated costs. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Letter of January 29, 2015 from the Wapiti Corridor Planning Society 

2     Request for Decision 
58



59



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Rescind Motion 12.12.733 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: CAO Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: 
 

FILE NO./LEGAL: 
 

  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council rescind motion 12.12.733 which reads as follows: 
“That Administration bring the policy as it relates to grant funding & financial statements for review by Council.” 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The noted motion was made at the December 11, 2012 Council Meeting, a draft policy in this respect was not 
created by the Policy Review Committee.  
 
At the February 17th, 2015 Committee of the Whole meeting, Council requested Administration bring forth a 
motion to rescind motion 12.12.733. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council may also choose to maintain the current motion. 
 
Benefits – Following the recommended motion will allow for a revised policy to be brought forward. 
 
Disadvantages – N/A 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
There are no costs associated with Staff’s recommendation. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• NA 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
60



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: AUMA Invitation 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: CAO Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: MH 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – NA 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – NA 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council choose one Council member to attend the 2015 AUMA Convention as a guest of the Town 
of Grande Cache. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Administration received an invitation from the Town of Grande Cache for one Council member to attend the 
2015 AUMA Convention in Calgary on September 23 to 25, 2015  
 
The Town of Grande Cache will cover all expenses related to the convention, excepting honorariums. The Town 
of Grande Cache sees this as an excellent opportunity to improve relationships between the two municipalities. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council members may choose not to attend AUMA 
 
Benefits – This is an excellent opportunity to improve relations between the MD and the Town of Grande Cache 
as well as gaining an enhanced understanding of issues of importance to urban municipalities. 
 
Disadvantages – N/A 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
There are no costs associated with Staff’s recommendation. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
61



 

• Letter from the Town of Grande Cache 

2     Request for Decision 
62



63



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Flashing Green Lamp Program 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: JF 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services/Protective Services GM: DM PRESENTER: JF 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial- Traffic Safety Act, Section 116 
 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council receive the report on the flashing green lamp program as information. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Flashing Green Lamp Program is designed for volunteer fire fighters responding to emergency calls.  This item was 
previously discussed at the February 18, 2014 Committee of the Whole Meeting.  At this meeting, Council requested 
Administration to bring forth the Flashing Green Lamp Program to Council for further discussion.   
 
As per the attached documents, one of the major issues with the Flashing Green Lamp Program will be the liability for 
both Greenview and the flashing green lamp users.  The cost of the green lamps will be $150.00 each, resulting in a 
$7,500.00 unbudgeted total, as approximately 50 volunteer fire fighter members would require the lamps. The 
Flashing Green Lamp Program was previously brought to Council at the November 26, 2003 regular Council meeting 
and was denied as per Council Motion 03.11.532.  
 
Administration recommends to not proceed with the Flashing Green Lamp Program at this time, due to liability and 
administrative complexities. It is not certain that the value of the lamps outweighs the risks associated with their use.  
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council may ask Administration to draft a bylaw for the implementation of the Flashing Green Lamp 
Program or Council may accept the report as information. 
 
Benefits – N/A 
 
Disadvantages – The disadvantage of proceeding with the Green Lamp Program is that Greenview would assume 
additional liability risk.    
 
         

Greenview, Alberta     1 
64



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
There is no funding allocated in the 2015 operating budget for the Flashing Green Lamp Program. The flashing 
green lamps are $150.00 each at a total cost of approximately $7,500.00 to $8,000.00. 
  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• 2001 legal opinion 
• 2013 legal opinion 
• AAMD&C Risk Management Advisor Email 

2     Request for Decision 
65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



 
  

 

Request for Decision 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Nitehawk Funding Request  
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 24, 2015 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services GM: DM PRESENTER: DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  FINANCIAL REVIEW:  
 
RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 
 
Council Bylaw / Policy (cite) – N/A 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve the Grande Prairie Ski Club Business Plan for the Nitehawk Recreation Area for 
information as presented.  
 
MOTION:  That Council approve a four year funding commitment to the Grande Prairie Ski Club for the Nitehawk 
Recreation Area in the amount of $455,000.00 for 2015, $332,882.00 for 2016, $368,382.00 for 2017 and 
$268,382.00 for 2018, with 2015 funds to come from the 2015 Community Services Recreation Facilities Budget, 
contingent upon Nitehawk Recreation Area submitting annual financial accounting of the funding provided. 
 
MOTION:  That Council approve the transfer of $455,000.00 from the 2015 Contingency Budget to the 2015 
Community Services Recreation Facilities Budget. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
On July 8, 2014, Motion 14.07.348 stated that any additional funding to Nitehawk Recreation Area will not be 
considered by Council until a business plan has been approved by Council. 
 
The Grande Prairie Ski Club owns and operates the Nitehawk Recreation Area.  The Grande Prairie Ski Club is a 
non-profit organization dedicated to the operation and future expansion of Nitehawk Recreation Area.  As a non-
profit organization, it relies heavily on a volunteer base to make the hill a success. 
 
The purpose of the business plan is to develop a 4–year working plan for Nitehawk in order to assist in securing 
the funding necessary to ensure the sustainability of the facility.  More specifically, the business plan seeks to 
secure sustainable funding from the City of Grande Prairie, the County of Grande Prairie and the Municipal 
District of Greenview. 
 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
75



 

Greenview has provided the Grande Prairie Ski Club with funding previously in the amounts of $26,000.00 
operating, $87,000.00 capital for a total of $113,000.00 in 2013 and $40,000.00 operating, $70,000.00 capital 
and $80,000.00 deficit contribution for a total of $190,000.00 in 2014.  In addition, Greenview provides in-kind 
funding, such as road maintenance in the amount of approximately $8,500.00 annually. 
 
Staff is also suggesting that Council consider any expectations to be placed upon the Grande Prairie Ski Club, such 
as the requirement to have a sustainable 10 year plan prior to the conclusion of the current plan and/or 
expressing that no additional monies will be forwarded during the current four year plan other than what has 
been approved. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Options – Council has the option to deny any funding commitments to the Grande Prairie Ski Club or alter the 
funding commitments. 
 
Benefits – The benefit of approving the four year funding commitment will be that Greenview is supporting the 
sustainability of a recreation facility. 
 
Disadvantages – The disadvantage of providing a four year funding commitment is that this may set a precedence 
in relation to funding requirements for other similar recreational facilities. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The funding for the four year commitment will come from the 2015 Contingency Reserve Budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Nitehawk Recreation Area Business Plan 
• Nitehawk Regular Maintenance Report dated June 11, 2013 

2     Request for Decision 
76



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

NITEHAWK RECREATION AREA 
 
 
 

BUSINESS PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 11, 2014 
 

77



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
      
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
 
2.0 VISION AND MISSION  

 
3.0 PURPOSE OF BUSINESS PLAN 

 
3.1 The Issues 
 
3.2 Sustainable funding needs 
 
3.3 Hill Equipment replacement fund/reserves 
 
3.4 Revenue Streams 
 
3.5 Funding Strategy 
 
3.6 Proposed funding formula 
 
3.7 Long term capital needs 
 
3.8 Objective of Ecosign Master plan 
 
3.9 Plan review 
 

4.0 CAPITAL SPENDING AND HILL IMPROVEMENT 2014-2018 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
A) Ecosign Master Plan 
B) 2014 Financial Statements 
C) Energy costs 
D) Skier visits 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

78



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

1 
 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
The Grande Prairie Ski Club owns and operates the Nitehawk Recreation Area.  The 
Grande Prairie Ski Club is a non-profit organization dedicated to the operation and future 
expansion of Nitehawk Recreation Area.  As a non-profit organization, it relies heavily 
on a volunteer base to make the hill a success. 
 
Nitehawk Recreation Area is located approximately 16 kilometers south of the City of 
Grande Prairie on the south banks of the Wapiti River in the MD of Greenview.  The 
Recreation Area is a regional family-oriented multi-purpose recreation facility that caters 
to people of all ages.  It is an important part of the recreation infrastructure of the region 
adding to the quality of life for area residents.  It is the preeminent learn to ski facility in 
northern Alberta. 
 
The purpose of the business plan is to develop a 4-year working plan for Nitehawk in 
order to assist in securing the funding necessary to ensure the sustainability of the 
facility.  More specifically, the business plan seeks to secure sustainable funding from the 
City of Grande Prairie, the County of Grande Prairie and the Municipal District of 
Greenview. 
 
The Business Plan is intended to provide direction in the areas of immediate operational 
needs and to provide a plan for the replacement and upgrading of key equipment and 
facility needs.  The success of integrating the two areas will help to bolster the financial 
stability of the operation and ensure that the facility will continue to add to the quality of 
life of the Grande Prairie area. 
 
The Business Plan will consist of 2 parts; firstly, the plan to identify the need for ongoing 
operational funding and, secondly, identification of a replacement and upgrading strategy 
for equipment and hill improvements. 
 
Traditionally, the support for the facility has come from a combination of fundraising, 
grants, gift in kind and municipal support.  As the demand for improved safety 
requirements and upscale winter experiences increase, the need for more and better 
equipment continues to grow.  This growth is placing enormous stress on the ability of 
the organization to generate sufficient revenue to operate the facility and to raise the 
sufficient funds to keep up to demand for new equipment.  Even in a good year, 
insufficient funds are generated to maintain and replace equipment and make the 
necessary changes to enhance visitor experiences.  
 
Previous Plans sought to achieve a number of objectives including capturing the history 
of the hill, trying to distinguish the difference between operating and capital issues and to 
develop a process for dealing with requests for improvements to the Recreation area.  As 
such, the plans did not focus on the future perhaps as much as they could have.  A more 
recent Master Plan prepared by Ecosign Mountain Resort Planners Ltd. completed a very 
comprehensive review of the facility.  The report analyzed the current inventory of assets 

79



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

2 
 

 

and capacities.  Further, the report identified some concepts for long-term hill expansion 
and future revenue streams to diversify the business opportunities for the hill and ensure 
sustainability.   
 
The primary purpose of this version of the current Business Plan, however, will be to 
provide a focus for the next 4 years, to provide for a stable base which will allow the hill 
to pursue future expansion activities and more infrastructure at the Recreation area, when 
time and financial capabilities allow.   
 
As a year-round facility, the operation is constantly challenged to match the demands of 
ongoing operational needs with the need to plan for long-term capital replacement and 
upgrading of equipment.  The function of the plan will be to develop a strategy that 
addresses both short and long-term needs and ensure the economic sustainability of the 
area.  
 
2.0 VISION AND MISSION STATEMENTS 
 
 
 OUR VISION 
 
 
The Nitehawk Recreation area is recognized by the region as a year-round operation 
featuring world class facilities.  Nitehawk strives to maximize opportunities for outdoor 
recreation activities in all seasons.  It provides a safe learning environment for skiers, 
lugers and snowboarders as well as exciting spring, summer and fall recreation 
opportunities for families and the community. 
 
 

OUR MISSION 
 
To provide a quality experience for all people of all ages in every season. 
 
 
 
 

80



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

3 
 

 

3.0 PURPOSE OF BUSINESS PLAN 
 
The purpose of the business plan is to provide guidance and direction to the Board of 
Directors and potential funding partners to ensure the financial sustainability of the 
Nitehawk Recreation Area.  A financially sustainable operation will provide assurance to 
the public that the facility will continue to operate in the winter months and to provide 
assurance to the Board of Directors that annual financial crisis management can be 
avoided. 
 
The key objective is to identify the major issues leading to recent financial shortfalls and 
to recommend improvements to both operationally and capital expenditures that will 
improve efficiencies and the financial health of the Recreation Area. 
 
Secondly, the plan will identify some longer term capital projects that will serve to grow 
the Recreation Area to serve an increasing population and improve the visitor experience. 
  
 

3.1 THE ISSUES 

There are many issues facing the operation of ski facility.  At the heart of the issue is the 
problem of trying to run a first-class operation with too many variables that are beyond 
the control of the hill to manage.  Several of the issues facing the Recreation Area that is 
making it increasingly difficult to operate in the black are listed below. 

The weather plays a major role in the financial success of the hill.  In 2013-14 season for 
example, cold weather in both December and February severely affected the number of 
visitors to the hill.  Snowmaking is a critical component to the operation of the ski 
facility yet the snowmaking effort is extremely costly.  Given a short season of 4 months, 
losing one half of the usable months means that Nitehawk has 100% of the expense and a 
fraction of the income.  This situation would affect any business.  There is nothing that a 
plan can do to make changes to the weather patterns.   

The Ski facility is capital intensive.  Even during the best seasons, any surplus generated 
is reinvested in new equipment and in making improvements to the facility.   

The key issues are: 

 -  Operating financial losses 3 of last 4 years which seems to be a continuing trend, 

-  Aging equipment requiring more frequent and costly repairs, 

-  Lack of a capital replacement fund to replace the aging equipment, 

-  Increased operating costs, particularly energy costs including electrical power, natural 
gas and diesel fuel, 

-  Increased safety standards. 

81



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

4 
 

 

 

The result of a combination of factors has created a situation where significant effort and 
financial resources are used to pay bills and repair outdated equipment leaving little or no 
money left to deal with the longer term replacement of equipment and machinery or 
improvements to the facility to create efficiencies.  This band aid approach is starting to 
catch up with the operation of the facility putting the future opening of the hill in years 
ahead in jeopardy.   

The plan is intended to recognize that should an investment be made in new equipment, 
there should be an objective to try to achieve efficiencies both in labour and energy.  
Some savings may be accomplished through the purchase of newer equipment.  Newer 
equipment has the benefit of being more energy efficient, in the case of snow making 
equipment, or may be more efficient and reducing manpower costs in the handling and 
changing of equipment.  The goal is to reduce labour costs and to reduce energy 
consumption, two of the major problem areas in building a sustainable funding model. 

Lastly the Recreation Area needs to pursue opportunities for future expansion and 
continue to creation a variety of new experiences for visitors. 

 

3.2 SUSTAINABLE FUNDING NEEDS 

Ongoing sustainability funding consists of two components: the first to ensure there are 
sufficient funds to ensure that the area is open and operational for the winter season and 
should unforeseen circumstances arise, there is money to pay the bills.  Secondly, and as 
important, there is a requirement to provide for a capital replacement reserve fund for the 
purposes of having regular equipment replacement. 

Operational Requirements 

With respect to support for the operation of the facility, it would be helpful for the 
municipalities to contribute to the energy costs for the hill.  These costs include electrical 
power costs, natural gas and diesel and other petroleum products for use in the various 
pieces of equipment.  In the 2013-14 year, these costs totaled over $200,000.   

Nitehawk is part of a larger buying group for the purchase of electrical power and so the 
charge per kilowatt hour of usage is competitive with other larger programs.  However, 
demand charges, which are determined at peak load usage and occur at the coldest times 
of the year in conjunction with snow making, result in excessively high charges which 
must be paid all year long. 

Power and energy costs 

Power deregulation has not been kind to Nitehawk Recreation area.  Before deregulation, 
the local supplier could supply power as a gift-in-kind or find ways to minimize the 
provision of power to the site.  However with deregulation the Recreation Area is now 
required to pay full value for the power.  One of the main drivers of the cost of the power 

82



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

5 
 

 

is the demand charge.  This is the charge that is levied against the hill for the purposes of 
delivering peak load requirements.  Once the peak load has been established, the 
Recreation area must pay for the infrastructure needed to provide peak load every month 
even though the peak is only met during the snow making season. 

Nitehawk has been working with the Canadian Western Ski Association in a buyers 
group to achieve reasonable power rates, but the key issue is the demand charge.  

In addition to electric power costs, the hill spends upwards of $80,000 in fuel costs for all 
the equipment (snowmobiles, groomers and compressors).  New energy efficient 
equipment and other efforts will be an important component in reducing energy costs and 
hence the costs of operating the hill. 

Total request with respect to the energy cost is $200,000. 

A commitment from the municipalities to cover energy costs would be a huge step in 
enabling the facility to break even in a fiscal year.  This request is in addition to the 
current level of support given to Nitehawk through items such as insurance coverage, 
snow plowing, mowing and so forth. 

 

3.3 HILL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND/RESERVES 

As identified earlier, aging equipment is becoming more of an issue.  Too much effort 
and expense is spent on repairing old equipment in trying to make it serviceable.  A key 
feature of the Business plan is to identify a replacement plan to provide newer equipment 
on a regular basis.  This solution has the added bonus of potentially reducing labour and 
parts costs, thereby improving the financial operation. The current inventory of 
equipment on the hill includes: 

 3 groomers (2008, 1998 and 1994) 

 6 snowmobiles, including 1 dedicated for emergency services only 

 Magic carpet (70 ft) 

 Wonder carpet (600 ft Tube Park) 

 Platter lift 

 Triple chair 

 River pumps 

 Top of hill pumps 

 Water pipes 

 Snow guns 

83



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

6 
 

 

 

Groomers 

According to the Master Plan prepared by Ecosign Mountain Resort Planners Ltd, 2 of 
the 3 groomers are beyond their useful lifecycle. (Maximum of 6,000 hours)  Currently 
the newest machine is utilized about 850 hours per year while the older 2 are used about 
300 hours per year each.  New machines can run in the $250,000 range.  There is no 
replacement fund in place to ensure the machines can be replaced every 6,000 hours.  
Total value of equipment replacement is $500,000. 

Historical data suggests that each machine should average about 600 hours per year 
giving the machines a 10 year life cycle.  A reserve should be established in the order of 
$50,000 per year to provide for the replacement of machines. 

 

Snow making 

At present it is estimated to cost between $270,000 and $300,000 to make snow each year 
at the hill.  The three main components contributing to this expense is labour, energy 
costs, and equipment costs. 

The overall goal is to have the entire hill open by December 15th.  From a revenue 
perspective, it is important to have the hill open during the Christmas season in order to 
create any type of surplus for the hill. 

In simple terms, the system involves pumping water from the Wapiti River to the top of 
the hill then pumping the water through a system of pipes on every run and out through 
snow guns.  The system requires the use of compressors to blow air and water through 
the guns making snow at cold temperatures.  

Considerable labour is used in connecting and disconnecting guns and hoses and moving 
them to different runs.  

Energy costs are significant in starting and running the pumps, and in running the 
compressor. 

The snow is blown into large mounds or whales.  A groomer is then used to move the 
snow about the runs to fill in low areas and create a run suitable for skiing or snow 
boarding. 

Consideration is currently being given to develop a system that would reduce both labour 
and energy costs.  The Board has given approval to start to acquire the snow guns 
necessary to implement a new system.  It is expected that the new system will be 
implemented over the next several years by adding a system of fixed snow guns to the 
existing piping system on each run.  The system proposes to utilize airless technology to 
reduce energy costs. 

84



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

7 
 

 

The phasing of the project envisions starting on Easy Street and expanding to other runs 
should the technology prove worthwhile. 

 

Pumps 

Current pump capacity at river is 750 gallons per minute.  This is deemed to be adequate 
to support the current form of snow making.  However if a new snow making system is 
implemented, it is likely that pumping capacity from the river will have to increase.  The 
plan recommends that a second pump with the same capacity be added to the system. 

 

Compressors   

An existing compressor owned by Nitehawk is at end of its useful life cycle and for the 
past year a compressor has been rented.  Purchase of 2 smaller used compressors would 
save on rental costs.  This has been identified in the plan. 

 

Generators 

Generators are being considered to reduce power consumption and demand charges 
driven by the startup of pump motors.  The financial outlay may involve the purchase and 
installation of the generators.  This has been identified in the plan. 

 

Manpower 

Labour costs are estimated to be ½ of the cost of making snow.  The development of a 
system of stationary guns on every run will reduce manpower needed to make snow if 
completed across all runs.   

 

Snow Guns 

The Board has approved the purchase of 24 additional snow guns.  It is intended that 
these be stationary guns placed along the water lines along each run.  One of the benefits 
of these snow guns is that they can operate either as airless guns or with air, depending 
on conditions and assist in getting the hill open sooner.  

 

 

Target Reduction 

85



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

8 
 

 

With the many improvements identified, a target savings of $100,000 per year may be 
achievable.  This is not something that can be achieved overnight but rather over a period 
of years provided sufficient funding is available. 

 

Snowmobiles 

The area requires 5 snowmobiles to service the hill plus one additional machine which is 
dedicated for emergency services only (Canadian Ski Patrol).  The Hill has obtained 
$20,000 in funding to replace 2 of the sleds in the 2014-2015 year.  There is no formal 
replacement or replacement cycle in place for the future replacement of the other 3 
machines. 

It is recommended that snowmobiles be replaced every 5 years.  This would require 
approximately $11,000- $12,000 per year to be set aside for snowmobile replacement. 

 

Hill Improvements 

The financial reports for Nitehawk suggest that “hill improvements” carry a value of 
nearly $2,200,000.  The improvements include but are not limited to all of the lifts (4), 
the chalet and related infrastructure and lighting.  At present, regular maintenance is 
included as part of the operations but any major repairs or replacement of the 8 
improvements is not budgeted.  This has created problems with balancing the budget.  
The Business plan is proposing a more proactive approach to deal with major repairs and 
replacement.  The strategy involves setting aside 7% of the value of the improvements on 
an annual basis.  This strategy is designed around maintaining the current infrastructure 
leaving any major future improvements to a capital campaign. 

Platter lift 

Triple chair 

Magic Carpet (Small) Bob’s Bump (70 ft) 

Magic Carpet (Large) Tube Park (600 ft) 

 

Lighting 

One of the important objectives of the Business plan is to work towards the hill becoming 
more energy efficient.  An important area for consideration in achieving this objective is 
in replacing the current lighting system with new LED lights.  However, this plan would 
require a study, to be followed by an implementation plan.  The Business Plan identifies 
the need and proposed budget. 

3.4 REVENUE STREAMS 

86



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

9 
 

 

With respect to increasing revenue streams, a recent study has indicated that the hill may 
be at the top of their ability to charge more for a daily pass.  It may be more likely that 
increased revenue from an increasing number of visitor passes may be possible.  
However much of this will be dependent on getting the entire hill open sooner.  Current 
practice is to discount daily pass rates until all runs are open.  The longer the runs remain 
unopened, the longer the discounts apply which bleeds potential revenue from the hill. 

Additional marketing is being contemplated to ensure that there is good regional 
awareness of what the hill has to offer.  A campaign to re-brand the hill focusing on the 
‘learn to ski’ elements is important to attract the young family demographics in the 
region.  As much as has been done in the past, a new campaign targeted at new and 
existing users, sponsors past and present and municipal contributions is required. 

Significant effort is being put into additional special events during off peak seasons.  
Nitehawk needs to develop a catering and special events package for the purposes of 
marketing the facility.  Hosting special events such as the Zulu Challenge could bring in 
significant revenues to the hill. 

Every effort will be made to bolster revenue income to Nitehawk. 

 

3.5 FUNDING STRATEGY 

With respect to the funds requested, it is recommended that the amount required to offset 
the energy costs be allocated directly to Nitehawk on an annual basis. 

With respect to the proposed funding for both the equipment replacement and the hill 
improvements, two scenarios are proposed.  The first scenario would see the funds 
granted to Nitehawk and placed in a special fund.  This fund would be accessed as 
required and only after a motion from the Board of Directors.  Separate accounting for 
this fund would be produced. 

A second scenario could allow the funds to reside with the respective municipalities in 
reserve accounts.  Nitehawk would then requisition the funding when required.   

Unused funds would be retained within the reserve accounts for future projects. 

Lastly, with respect to fund withdrawal, ongoing measurement of efforts to achieve 
efficiencies in the reduction of energy use and labour costs should be demonstrated to 
gauge the success of new equipment. 

 

3.6 PROPOSED FUNDING FORMULA 

It has been the current practice to include all 3 municipalities in any funding requests.  
This Business plan contemplates the same philosophy.  However it goes one step further 
in requesting that the funding formula be as follows: 

87



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

10 
 

 

  50% of the request to be provided by the MD of Greenview 

 25% of the request to be provided by the City of Grande Prairie 

 25% of the request to be provided by the County of Grande Prairie 

Municipal request 

Annual funding to offset energy costs ($200,000) 

MD of Greenview  $100,000 

City of Grande Prairie  $50,000 

County of Grande Prairie $50,000 

 

Equipment Replacement and Hill Improvement reserve funding 

(based on the value of property, plant and equipment from the 2014 financial statement 
$2,179,498 plus equipment replacement) 

Municipality   2015  2016  2017  2018 

Greenview   $355,000 $232,882 $268,382 $168,382 

City    $177,500 $116,441 $134,191 $ 84,191 

County    $177,500 $116,441 $134,191 $ 84,191 

 

Totals: 

    2015  2016  2017  2018 

MD of Greenview  $455,000 $332,882 $368,382 $268,382 

City of Grande Prairie  $227,000 $166,441 $184,191 $134,191 

County of Grande Prairie $227,000 $166,441 $184,191 $134,191

88



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

11 
 

 

3.7 LONG TERM CAPITAL NEEDS 

The long-term capital needs are identified in the Ecodesign Report.  Although no costing 
is identified, the plan does inventory many of the opportunities for future improvements.  
A synopsis of the plan is listed below. 

 

3.8 OBJECTIVES OF MASTER PLAN by Ecosign  

 Optimize the use and operational efficiency of the physical plant and area layout 

 5-25 year plan to renovate and expand the existing ski resort to current industry 
standards 

 Continue upgrades and improvements to increase skier visitation 

 Upgrade Terrain Park to increase visits 

 Install new lifts where needed 

 Provide or expand on year round recreational activities for families and visitors of 
all ages.  Summer activities including mountain biking and bike park, alpine 
slides or coasters, concerts and festivals, hiking, ziptrecks, stargazing, Euro-
bungee, river based activities with boat launch, etc.  Winter activities such as 
tubing, miniZ, snowshoeing, climbing wall and Euro-bungee. 

 Broaden revenue base of resort area through new developments 

 Balance lift and trail capacity to maintain quality skiing and snowboarding 
conditions and meet requirements of market 

 Balance mountain capacity with guest services base of staging areas and parking 

 Replace and modernize the rundown skier service building 

 Increase capacity of all operational components to meet the increasing 
recreational demand from the region. 

 

Funding for these improvements would come from a variety sources including Gift in 
Kind, donations, grants, municipal contributions and other special fundraising events. 

89



NITEHAWK SKI AREA  BUSINESS PLAN 

12 
 

 

 

3.9 PLAN REVIEW 

The purpose of the Business Plan is to establish a sound financial footing for Nitehawk 
both now and moving forward into the future.  The challenge is not difficult with the 
support of the regional municipalities.  As with any plan, it is expected that it will be 
reviewed annually and discussed with the supporting municipalities to ensure that the 
objectives of both Nitehawk and the funding partners are aligned.  This annual review 
will provide the opportunity to make adjustments to the plan as necessary in light of 
changing priorities and issues. 

 

 

90



Book Value 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

SnowMaking

Snow guns 24,000.00$       50,000.00$          50,000.00$       50,000.00$           50,000.00$             
River pump 30,000.00$       100,000.00$         
pipes (GIK)
compressor 2 x 750 cm 60,000.00$          
generator 50,000.00$          
generator installation 20,000.00$          

Hill Equipment

Groomers
1994
1998
2008 62,500.00$          62,500.00$       62,500.00$           62,500.00$             
2015 250,000.00$        25,000.00$       25,000.00$           25,000.00$             

Snowmobiles 20,000.00$       11,000.00$          11,000.00$       12,000.00$           12,000.00$             

Hill Improvements 2,179,489.00$         152,265.00$        152,265.00$     152,265.00$         152,265.00$           
Platter 
Triple chair 
Magic carpet small
Magic carpet large
Tube Park
Erosion control 35000 35000 35000 35000
Lighting 100,000.00$     100,000.00$         

Marketing 20,000.00$          

Total 44,000.00$       710,765.00$        465,765.00$     536,765.00$         336,765.00$           

NITEHAWK RECREATION AREA

CAPITAL SPENDING and HILL IMPROVMENTS 2014-2018

91



W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

B
i
k
e
3

B
i
k
e
1

B
i
k
e
2

D
E

C
 
2

1

0
9

:
1

9
 
h

r
s
.

A
z
 
=
 
1
3
2
.
3
Á

A
z
 
=
 
4
4
.
4
Á

0
5

:
1

6
 
h

r
s
.

J
U

N
E

 
2

1

S
U

N
R

I
S

E

7
 
(
6

 
D

S
T

)
 
h

r
s
.
 
b

e
h

i
n

d
 
o

f
 
U

T
C

W
I
N

T
E

R

S
O

L
S

T
I
C

E

N
O

R
T

H

S
U

N
S

E
T

D
E

C
 
2

1

1
6

:
2

8
 
h

r
s
.

A
z
 
=
 
2
2
7
.
6
Á

A
z
.
 
=
 
3
1
5
.
7
Á

2
2

:
3

9
 
h

r
s
.

J
U

N
E

 
2

1

S
U

M
M

E
R

S
O

L
S

T
I
C

E

L
O
N
G
I
T
U
D
E
 
=
 
1
1
8
Á
 
5
1
.
5
'
 
W
e
s
t

L
A
T
I
T
U
D
E
 
=
 
5
5
Á
 
3
.
5
'
 
N
o
r
t
h

4
0

8
0

1
2

0
1

6
0

2
0

0
0

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

3
P

O
T

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
I
N

C
O

M
I
N

G
 
S

O
L

A
R

 
R

A
D

I
A

T
I
O

N
 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

A
V

E
R

A
G

E
 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 
O

F

D
A

Y
L

I
G

H
T

 
H

O
U

R
S

:

1
2

.
8

6
 
h

o
u

r
s
/
d

a
y

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
P

O
T

E
N

T
I
A

L

S
O

L
A

R
 
E

N
E

R
G

Y
:

4
3

.
7

 
k
W

h
r
/
m

2

M
A

X
I
M

U
M

 
P

O
T

E
N

T
I
A

L

S
O

L
A

R
 
E

N
E

R
G

Y
:

6
0

7
.
6

 
k
W

h
r
/
m

2

A
V

E
R

A
G

E
 
P

O
T

E
N

T
I
A

L

S
O

L
A

R
 
E

N
E

R
G

Y
:

2
0

3
.
9

 
k
W

h
r
/
m

2

N
O

T
E

S
:

P
E

R
I
O

D
 
O

F
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N
:

D
a

i
l
y

D
e

c
.
 
1

,
 
2

0
0

9
 
t
o

 
M

a
r
.
 
3

1
,
 
2

0
1

0

D
A

I
L

Y
 
E

X
T

E
N

T
S

 
O

F
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N
:

0
3

:
0

0
 
-
 
2

2
:
0

0
 
h

r
s

I
N

T
E

R
V

A
L

 
O

F
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N
:

1
5

 
m

i
n

u
t
e

s

N
U

M
B

E
R

 
O

F
 
D

A
Y

S
 
A

N
A

L
Y

Z
E

D
:

1
2

1
 
d

a
y
s

T
o
 
G

r
o
v
e
d
a
l
e

T
o
 
G

r
a
n
d
e

P
r
a
i
r
i
e
 
(
H

w
y
 
4
0
)

92



P

P

B
i
k
e
3

B
i
k
e
1

B
i
k
e
2

L

I

F

T

 

B

 

/

 

P

L

I

F

T

 

C

 

/

 

M

C

L

I
F

T

 
A

 
/
 
3

C

A
1
-
I
I

A
1
-
I

B
1

B
2

C

A
8

A
3
-
I

A
3
-
I
I

A
4

A
5

A
6

A
7

A
2

A
1
0

A
9

W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

0

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

M
a

i
n

t
e

n
a

n
c

e
 
S

h
o

p

M
a

i
n

 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g

0
.
5

8
H

a
.
 
1

9
0

C
a

r
s

O
v

e
r
f
l
o

w
 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g

0
.
5

H
a

.
 
1

6
5

C
a

r
s

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
/
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
g

r
o

u
n

d

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

 
A

r
e

a

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 
R

o
a

d

S
k

i
 
J

u
m

p
 
S

u
m

m
e

r
 
P

r
a

c
t
i
c

e
 
A

r
e

a

L
u

g
e

 
S

t
a

r
t

L
u

g
e

 
F

i
n

i
s

h

P
o

r
t
a

b
l
e

 
/
 
S

k
i
e

r
 
S

e
r
v

i
c

e
s

P
u

b
l
i
c
 
L

o
c
k
e

r
,
 
F

i
r
s
t
 
A

i
d

,
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

,

W
.
C

.
,
 
F

&
B

(
B

r
o

w
n

 
B

a
g

 
/
 
C

a
f
e

t
e

r
i
a

)

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
C

h
a

l
e

t

T
i
c
k
e

t
s
,
 
R

e
n

t
a

l
 
/
 
R

e
p

a
i
r
,
 
F

&
B

,

B
a

r
 
L

o
u

n
g

e
,
 
W

.
C

.
,
 
A

d
m

i
n

.
,
 
D

e
c
k

H
a

l
f
 
P

i
p

e

S
k

i
 
S

c
h

o
o

l

L
E

G
E

N
D

S
k
i
 
T

r
a

i
l
 
A

b
i
l
i
t
y
 
L

e
v
e

l

E
a

s
i
e

r

M
o

r
e

 
D

i
f
f
i
c
u

l
t

M
o

s
t
 
D

i
f
f
i
c
u

l
t

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

i
f
t
s
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
T

r
a

i
l
s
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
B

u
i
l
d

i
n

g
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

M
o

u
n

t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
T

r
a

i
l
s
.
.
.

L
u

g
e

 
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
R

o
a

d
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
/

R
V

 
P

a
r
k
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

 
A

r
e

a
.
.
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
P

a
r
k
i
n

g
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

M
o

u
n

t
a

i
n

 
R

e
s
t
a

u
r
a

n
t
.
.
.
.
.

S
k
i
 
P

a
t
r
o

l
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

W
A

P
I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E
R

M

a
i
n

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 
R

o
a
d

 
t
o

 
G

r
a
n

d
 
P

r
a
i
r
i
e

4
0

8
0

1
2
0

1
6
0

2
0
0

4
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

K
I
 
H

I
L

L
 
A

N
D

 
S

K
I
E

R
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
F

A
C

I
L

I
T

I
E

S

P
u

m
p

 
H

o
u

s
e

93



W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

A
1
-
I
I

A
1
-
I

B
1

B
2

C

A
8

A
3
-
I

A
3
-
I
I

A
4

A
5

A
6

A
7

A
2

A
1
0

A
9

P

B
i
k
e
3

B
i
k
e
1

B
i
k
e
2

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

M
O

U
N

T
A

I
N

 
S

L
O

P
E

 
G

R
A

D
I
E

N
T

0
-
8

%

8
-
2

5
%

2
5

-
4

5
%

4
5

-
7

0
%

7
0

%
 
+

S
k
i
 
P

o
d

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

i
f
t

4
0

8
0

1
2

0
1

6
0

2
0

0
0

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

5
S

K
I
 
H

I
L

L
 
S

L
O

P
E

 
&

 
T

E
R

R
A

I
N

 
C

A
P

A
C

I
T

Y
 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

T
o
 
G

r
o
v
e
d
a
l
e

T
o
 
G

r
a
n
d
e

P
r
a
i
r
i
e
 
(
H

w
y
 
4
0
)

94



W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

B
i
k
e
3

B
i
k
e
1

B
i
k
e
2

P
2

P
1

4
0

8
0

1
2

0
1

6
0

2
0

0
0

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

6
B

A
S

E
 
A

R
E

A
 
S

L
O

P
E

 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

B
A

S
E

 
S

L
O

P
E

 
 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

 
G

R
A

D
I
E

N
T

S

0
-
8
%

8
-
1
5
%

1
5
-
2
5
%

2
5
-
4
0
%

4
0
%

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
L
i
f
t
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
B

u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
P

a
r
k
i
n
g

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
L
u
g
e
 
T

r
a
c
k

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
R

o
a
d

P

T
o
 
G

r
o
v
e
d
a
l
e

T
o
 
G

r
a
n
d
e

P
r
a
i
r
i
e
 
(
H

w
y
 
4
0
)

95



W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

B
i
k
e
3

B
i
k
e
1

B
i
k
e
2

L

I

F

T

 

B

 

/

 

P

L

I

F

T

 

C

 

/

 

M

C

L

I
F

T

 
A

 
/
 
3

C

P
2

P
1

4
0

8
0

1
2
0

1
6

0
2

0
0

0

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

7
B

A
S

E
 
A

R
E

A
 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

 
&

 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 
C

A
P

A
B

I
L
I
T

Y

N

E
W

A

f

t

e

r

n

o

o

n

S

u

n

M

o

r

n

i

n

g

S

u

n

S

P
O

T
E

N
T

I
A

L
 
L

A
N

D
 
U

S
E

 
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
B

u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s

 
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
P

a
r
k
i
n
g

 
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
L
u
g
e
 
T

r
a
c
k

 
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
R

o
a
d

 
 
S

u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r

 
 
R

e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
D

e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

 
 
S

u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
R

e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
a
l

 
 
D

e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
P

a
r
k
i
n
g

 
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
C

a
m

p
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
/
 
C

a
m

p
i
n
g

 
 
P

o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
"
N

e
v
e
r
 
E

v
e
r
"

 
 
S

n
o
w

p
l
a
y
 
Z

o
n
e

 
 
P

o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
K

i
d
'
s
 
A

d
v
e
n
t
u
r
e
 
Z

o
n
e

 
 
P

o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
D

e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t
 
Z

o
n
e

 
 
(
M

a
y
 
b
e
 
s
u
s
c
e
p
t
i
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
f
l
o
o
d
i
n
g
)

 
 
1
5
m

 
S

e
t
b
a
c
k
 
f
r
o
m

 
D

r
a
i
n
a
g
e

 
 
C

o
m

f
o
r
t
a
b
l
e
 
S

k
i
e
r
 
W

a
l
k
i
n
g
 
D

i
s
t
a
n
c
e

 
 
S

k
i
e
r
 
S

t
a
g
i
n
g
 
A

r
e
a

 
 
E

n
t
r
y
 
G

a
t
e

 
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
B

u
f
f
e
r

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1

1
4
.
6
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
2

3
.
7
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
3

2
.
1
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
4

0
.
7
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
5

8
.
5
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
6

1
.
7
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
7

1
.
6
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
8

1
.
5
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
9

7
.
3
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
0

3
.
3
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
1

0
.
9
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
3

2
.
7
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
4

4
.
6
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
5

3
.
2
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
6

4
.
1
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
7

3
.
5
 
H

a
.

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
2

3
.
3
 
H

a
.

T
e
n
t
 
C

a
m

p
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e

r
e
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
R

i
v
e
r

R
e
-
a
l
i
g
n

S
k
i
 
T

r
a
i
l

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
E

n
t
r
y
 
S

i
g
n
a
g
e

a
n
d
 
M

a
p
.
 
 
P

o
s
s
i
b
l
e

o
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
e
n
t
r
y
 
f
e
a
t
u
r
e
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
m

a
i
n
.

K
e
e
p
 
l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
i
n
g
 
b
u
f
f
e
r

t
o
 
s
c
r
e
e
n
 
v
i
e
w

s
 
t
o

p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
l
o
t
s
 
u
p
o
n
 
a
r
r
i
v
a
l
.

P
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
D

e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t
.

*
N

o
t
e
:
 
T

h
i
s
 
p
a
r
c
e
l
 
m

a
y
 
b
e

s
u
s
c
e
p
t
i
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
f
l
o
o
d
i
n
g
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
r
a
i
n
a
g
e

w
i
t
h
 
1
5
m

 
s
e
t
b
a
c
k

f
r
o
m

 
c
e
n
t
e
r
l
i
n
e
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
r
a
i
n
a
g
e

w
i
t
h
 
1
5
m

 
s
e
t
b
a
c
k

f
r
o
m

 
c
e
n
t
e
r
l
i
n
e
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
r
a
i
n
a
g
e

w
i
t
h
 
1
5
m

 
s
e
t
b
a
c
k

f
r
o
m

 
c
e
n
t
e
r
l
i
n
e
.

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
d
r
a
i
n
a
g
e

w
i
t
h
 
1
5
m

 
s
e
t
b
a
c
k

f
r
o
m

 
c
e
n
t
e
r
l
i
n
e
.

B
A

S
E

 
S

L
O

P
E

 
 
A

N
A

L
Y

S
I
S

 
G

R
A

D
I
E

N
T

S

0
-
8
%

8
-
1
5
%

1
5
-
2
5
%

2
5
-
4
0
%

4
0
%

S

W

D

S

W

D

S

W

D

S

W

D

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g

P
u
m

p
h
o
u
s
e

I
n
t
a
k
e

P
a
r
c
e
l
 
1
8

1
9
.
2
 
H

a
.

P

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
R

V

C
a
m

p
g
r
o
u
n
d

T
o
 
G

r
o
v
e
d
a
l
e

T
o
 
G

r
a
n
d
e

P
r
a
i
r
i
e
 
(
H

w
y
 
4
0
)

96



P
1

P
2

P
3

W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

P
4

P
5

P
6

L

I

F

T

 

B

 

/

 

P

L

I

F

T

 

C

 

/

 

M

C

L

I
F

T

 
A

 
/
 
3

C

A
1
-
I

B
1

B
2

C

A
8

A
3
-
I

A
3
-
I
I

A
4

A
5

A
6

A
7

A
2

A
1
0

A
9

L

I

F

T

 

D

 

/

 

3

C

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T

U

B

I
N

G

 
L

I
F

T

D
1

D
2
-
I

D
2
-
I
I

D
3

D
4

D
5

D
1

A
1
-
I
I

A
1
-
I
I

A
1
1

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

4
0

8
0

1
2

0
1

6
0

2
0

0
0

m

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g
 
G

r
o

u
n

d
 
/
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k

8
a

C
r
o

s
s

-
C

o
u

n
t
r
y

 
S

k
i
i
n

g
 
&

S
n

o
w

s
h

o
e

 
T

r
a

i
l
s

 
(
W

i
n

t
e

r
)

M
o

u
n

t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k

i
n

g
,
 
H

i
k

i
n

g
 
&

H
o

r
s

e
b

a
c

k
 
R

i
d

i
n

g
 
T

r
a

i
l
s

(
S

u
m

m
e

r
)

P
a

t
h

 
t
o

 
T

u
b

i
n

g
 
H

i
l
l

M
u

l
t
i
-
u

s
e

 
C

o
u

r
t
s

T
e

n
n

i
s
,
 
S

k
a

t
i
n

g
,
 
V

o
l
l
e

y
b

a
l
l
,

H
o

r
s
e

s
h

o
e

,
 
B

a
s
k
e

t
b

a
l
l

L
o

o
k

 
o

u
t
 
/
 
R

e
s

t
 
A

r
e

a

J
e

t
 
B

o
a

t
 
L

a
u

n
c

h

H
a

l
f
 
P

i
p

e

P
e

d
e

s
t
r
i
a

n
 
C

i
r
c

u
l
a

t
i
o

n

E
x

p
a

n
d

e
d

 
"
N

e
v

e
r
 
E

v
e

r
"
 
Z

o
n

e

N
e

w
 
A

c
c

e
s

s
 
R

o
a

d

t
o

 
J
e

t
 
B

o
a

t
 
L

a
u

n
c
h

 
a

n
d

W
i
l
d

p
l
a

y
 
E

l
e

m
e

n
t
 
P

a
r
k
 
-

M
o

n
k
i
d

o

J
e

t
 
B

o
a

t
 
L

a
u

n
c

h

W
i
l
d

p
l
a

y
 
&

 
C

r
o

s
s

-
C

o
u

n
t
r
y

S
k

i
i
n

g
/
S

n
o

w
s

h
o

e
 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g

0
.
3

9
H

a
.
 
/
 
1

2
5

 
C

a
r
s

W
i
l
d

p
l
a

y
 
E

l
e

m
e

n
t
 
P

a
r
k

M
o

n
k
i
d

o

D
a

y
 
U

s
e

r
 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g

1
.
6

2
H

a
.
 
5

3
0

 
C

a
r
s

K
i
d

s
'
 
A

d
v

e
n

t
u

r
e

 
Z

o
n

e

E
u

r
o

 
B

u
n

g
e

e
,
 
C

l
i
m

b
i
n

g
 
W

a
l
l

Z
i
p

 
R

i
d

e
r

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
L

u
g

e

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
S

k
i
 
J

u
m

p

S
u

m
m

e
r
 
P

r
a

c
t
i
c

e

A
r
e

a

W
A

P
I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E
R

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
C

h
a

l
e

t

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
P

o
r
t
a

b
l
e

 
/
 
S

k
i
e

r
 
S

e
r
v

i
c

e
s

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g
 
M

a
i
n

t
e

n
a

n
c

e
 
S

h
o

p

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
B

M
X

/
M

t
n

.
 
B

i
k

e

P
u

m
p

 
T

r
a

c
k

L
E

G
E

N
D

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

i
f
t
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
L

i
f
t
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
T

r
a

i
l
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
T

r
a

i
l
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
B

u
i
l
d

i
n

g

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
B

u
i
l
d

i
n

g

H
a

l
f
p

i
p

e

P
a

r
k
i
n

g

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
T

r
a

i
l
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

u
g

e

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
/
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k
 
E

x
p

a
n

s
i
o

n

R
e

s
t
a

u
r
a

n
t

S
k
i
 
P

a
t
r
o

l

P
e

d
e

s
t
r
i
a

n
 
C

i
r
c
u

l
a

t
i
o

n

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
T

u
b

i
n

g

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
B

e
g

i
n

n
e

r
 
L

u
g

e
 
T

r
a

c
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
 
B

M
X

 
C

o
u

r
s
e

 
/
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

P
u

m
p

 
T

r
a

c
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
M

o
n

k
i
d

o
 
W

i
l
d

p
l
a

y
 
E

l
e

m
e

n
t
 
P

a
r
k

J
e

t
 
B

o
a

t
 
L

a
u

c
h

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
D

o
w

n
h

i
l
l
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
P

a
r
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
T

r
a

i
l

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
C

r
o

s
s
-
C

o
u

n
t
r
y
/
S

n
o

w
s
h

o
e

/

M
o

u
n

t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
i
n

g
/
H

i
k
i
n

g
/
H

o
r
s
e

b
a

c
k

R
i
d

i
n

g
 
T

r
a

i
l

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
l
k
 
i
n

 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
Z

i
p

 
R

i
d

e
r

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
K

i
d

s
'
 
A

d
v
e

n
t
u

r
e

 
Z

o
n

e

E
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 
G

r
o

u
p

 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g
 
A

r
e

a

E
x

i
s

t
i
n

g

M
t
n

.
 
B

i
k

e
 
T

r
a

i
l

P
a

r
k

i
n

g
 
A

r
e

a
 
f
o

r
 
T

u
b

i
n

g

Z
o

n
e

 
(
E

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
S

t
o

r
a

g
e

A
r
e

a
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
R

e
l
o

c
a

t
e

d
)

0
.
3

5
H

a
.
 
/
 
1

1
5

 
C

a
r
s

G
r
o

u
p

 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g
 
A

r
e

a

M
i
n

i
-
Z

/
B

e
g

i
n

n
e

r

Z
o

n
e

 
P

a
r
k

i
n

g

0
.
1

7
H

a
.
 
5

5
 
C

a
r
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
D

a
y

 
L

o
d

g
e

T
i
c

k
e

t

K
i
o

s
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
E

n
t
r
y

S
i
g

n
a

g
e

 
a

n
d

 
M

a
p

 
/

P
o

s
s

i
b

l
e

 
O

v
e

r
h

e
a

d

E
n

t
r
y

 
F

e
a

t
u

r
e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k

 
E

x
p

a
n

s
i
o

n

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
D

a
y

 
L

o
d

g
e

F
o

o
d

,
 
T

i
c
k
e

t
s
,
 
R

e
n

t
a

l
s
,
 
L

o
u

n
g

e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
D

a
y

 
L

o
d

g
e

 
D

r
o

p
 
O

f
f

M
u

l
t
i
-
u

s
e

 
M

o
v

i
n

g
 
C

a
r
p

e
t

B
e

g
i
n

n
e

r
 
S

k
i
e

r
 
/
 
T

u
b

e
 
R

i
d

e
r

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
I
O

N
A

L
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N

S
u

m
m

e
r
 
a

n
d

 
W

i
n

t
e

r

T
u

b
i
n

g
 
H

i
l
l

B
e

g
i
n

n
e

r
 
L

u
g

e
 
T

r
a

c
k

S
h

o
r
t
 
T

e
r
m

 
W

a
l
k

-
i
n

U
n

-
S

e
r
v

i
c

e
d

C
a

m
p

i
n

g

T
u

b
i
n

g
 
H

u
t

T
i
c
k
e

t
s
,
 
S

n
o

w
 
t
u

b
e

s
t
o

r
a

g
e

,
 
W

C

C
r
o

s
s

-
c

o
u

n
t
r
y

/

S
n

o
w

s
h

o
e

i
n

g

W
a

r
m

i
n

g
 
H

u
t

J
e

t
 
B

o
a

t
/
C

a
n

o
e

/
K

a
y

a
k

 
T

i
c

k
e

t
 
B

o
o

t
h

97



P
1

P
2

P
3

W

A

P

I

T

I

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

W

A

P

I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E

R

P
4

P
5

P
6

L

I

F

T

 

B

 

/

 

P

L

I

F

T

 

C

 

/

 

M

C

L

I
F

T

 
A

 
/
 
3

C

A
1

-
I

B
1

B
2

C

A
8

A
3

-
I

A
3

-
I
I

A
4

A
5

A
6

A
7

A
2

A
1

0

A
9

L

I

F

T

 

D

 

/

 

3

C

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T

U

B

I

N

G

 

L

I

F

T

D
1

D
2

-
I

D
2

-
I
I

D
3

D
4

D
5

D
1

A
1

-
I
I

A
1

-
I
I

A
1

1

4
0

8
0

1
2
0

1
6
0

2
0
0

0
m

N
I
T

E
H

A
W

K

8
b

P
a
t
h

 
t
o

 
T

u
b

i
n

g
 
H

i
l
l

M
u

l
t
i
-
u

s
e
 
C

o
u

r
t
s

T
e
n
n
i
s
,
 
S

k
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
V

o
l
l
e
y
b
a
l
l
,

H
o
r
s
e
s
h
o
e
,
 
B

a
s
k
e
t
b
a
l
l

L
o

o
k
 
o

u
t
 
/
 
R

e
s
t
 
A

r
e
a

J
e
t
 
B

o
a
t
 
L

a
u

n
c
h

H
a
l
f
 
P

i
p

e

P
e
d

e
s
t
r
i
a
n

 
C

i
r
c
u

l
a
t
i
o

n

E
x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 
"
N

e
v
e
r
 
E

v
e
r
"
 
Z

o
n

e

N
e
w

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
 
R

o
a
d

t
o
 
J
e
t
 
B

o
a
t
 
L
a
u
n
c
h
 
a
n
d

W
i
l
d
p
l
a
y
 
E

l
e
m

e
n
t
 
P

a
r
k
 
-

M
o
n
k
i
d
o

J
e
t
 
B

o
a
t
 
L

a
u

n
c
h

a
n

d
 
W

i
l
d

p
l
a
y

 
P

a
r
k
i
n

g

0
.
3
9
H

a
.
 
/
 
1
2
5
 
C

a
r
s

W
i
l
d

p
l
a
y
 
E

l
e
m

e
n

t
 
P

a
r
k

M
o
n
k
i
d
o

M
t
n

.
 
B

i
k
e
 
P

a
r
k

B
e
g
i
n
n
e
r
 
/
 
I
n
t
e
r
m

e
d
i
a
t
e

M
t
n

.
 
B

i
k
e
 
P

a
r
k

B
e
g
i
n
n
e
r
 
/
 
I
n
t
e
r
m

e
d
i
a
t
e

P
a
r
k
i
n

g

1
.
6
2
H

a
.
 
5
3
0
 
C

a
r
s

K
i
d

s
'
 
A

d
v
e
n

t
u

r
e
 
Z

o
n

e

E
u
r
o
 
B

u
n
g
e
e
,
 
C

l
i
m

b
i
n
g
 
W

a
l
l

Z
i
p

 
L

i
n

e

M
t
n

.
 
B

i
k
e
 
P

a
r
k

B
e
g
i
n
n
e
r
 
/
 
I
n
t
e
r
m

e
d
i
a
t
e

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

u
g

e

W
A

P
I
T

I
 
R

I
V

E
R

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

h
a
l
e
t

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
P

o
r
t
a
b

l
e
 
/
 
S

k
i
e
r
 
S

e
r
v
i
c
e
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
M

a
i
n

t
e
n

a
n

c
e
 
S

h
o

p

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g
 
G

r
o

u
n

d
 
/
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g

M
t
n

.
 
B

i
k
e
 
T

r
a
i
l

G
r
o

u
p

 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g
 
A

r
e
a

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
S

k
i
 
J
u

m
p

S
u

m
m

e
r
 
P

r
a
c
t
i
c
e

A
r
e
a

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
B

M
X

/
M

t
n

.
 
B

i
k
e

P
u

m
p

 
T

r
a
c
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
E

n
t
r
y

S
i
g

n
a
g

e
 
a
n

d
 
M

a
p

 
/

P
o

s
s
i
b

l
e
 
O

v
e
r
h

e
a
d

E
n

t
r
y
 
F

e
a
t
u

r
e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k
 
E

x
p

a
n

s
i
o

n

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
M

t
n

.
 
B

i
k
e
 
T

r
a
i
l

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
D

a
y
 
L

o
d

g
e

F
o
o
d
,
 
T

i
c
k
e
t
s
,
 
R

e
n
t
a
l
s
,
 
L
o
u
n
g
e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
D

a
y
 
L

o
d

g
e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e
d

 
D

a
y
 
L

o
d

g
e
 
D

r
o

p
 
O

f
f

T
i
c
k
e
t

K
i
o

s
k

M
u

l
t
i
-
u

s
e
 
M

o
v
i
n

g
 
C

a
r
p

e
t

B
e
g
i
n
n
e
r
 
S

k
i
e
r
 
/
 
T

u
b
e
 
R

i
d
e
r

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
I
O

N
A

L
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
R

E
G

I
O

N
A

L
 
C

O
N

T
E

X
T

S
u

m
m

e
r
 
a
n

d
 
W

i
n

t
e
r

T
u

b
i
n

g
 
H

i
l
l

B
e
g

i
n

n
e
r
 
L

u
g

e
 
T

r
a
c
k

L
E

G
E

N
D

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

i
f
t
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
L

i
f
t
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
T

r
a

i
l
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
T

r
a

i
l
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
B

u
i
l
d

i
n

g

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
B

u
i
l
d

i
n

g

H
a

l
f
p

i
p

e

P
a

r
k
i
n

g

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
T

r
a

i
l
s

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
L

u
g

e

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
C

a
m

p
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
/
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
R

V
 
P

a
r
k
 
E

x
p

a
n

s
i
o

n

R
e

s
t
a

u
r
a

n
t

S
k
i
 
P

a
t
r
o

l

P
e

d
e

s
t
r
i
a

n
 
C

i
r
c
u

l
a

t
i
o

n

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
T

u
b

i
n

g

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
B

e
g

i
n

n
e

r
 
L

u
g

e
 
T

r
a

c
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
 
B

M
X

 
C

o
u

r
s
e

 
/
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

P
u

m
p

 
T

r
a

c
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
M

o
n

k
i
d

o
 
W

i
l
d

p
l
a

y
 
E

l
e

m
e

n
t
 
P

a
r
k

J
e

t
 
B

o
a

t
 
L

a
u

c
h

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
D

o
w

n
h

i
l
l
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
P

a
r
k

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
M

o
u

n
t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
e

 
T

r
a

i
l

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
C

r
o

s
s
-
C

o
u

n
t
r
y
/
S

n
o

w
s
h

o
e

/

M
o

u
n

t
a

i
n

 
B

i
k
i
n

g
/
H

i
k
i
n

g
/
H

o
r
s
e

b
a

c
k

R
i
d

i
n

g
 
T

r
a

i
l

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
W

a
l
k
 
i
n

 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
Z

i
p

 
R

i
d

e
r

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
K

i
d

s
'
 
A

d
v
e

n
t
u

r
e

 
Z

o
n

e

E
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 
G

r
o

u
p

 
C

a
m

p
i
n

g
 
A

r
e

a

C
r
o

s
s
-
C

o
u

n
t
r
y
 
S

k
i
i
n

g
 
&

S
n

o
w

s
h

o
e
 
T

r
a
i
l
s
 
(
W

i
n

t
e
r
)

M
o

u
n

t
a
i
n

 
B

i
k
i
n

g
,
 
H

i
k
i
n

g
 
&

H
o

r
s
e
b

a
c
k
 
R

i
d

i
n

g
 
T

r
a
i
l
s

(
S

u
m

m
e
r
)

P
a
r
k
i
n

g
 
A

r
e
a
 
f
o

r
 
T

u
b

i
n

g

Z
o

n
e
 
(
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
S

t
o
r
a
g
e

A
r
e
a
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
R

e
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
)

0
.
3
5
H

a
.
 
/
 
1
1
5
 
C

a
r
s

M
i
n

i
-
Z

/
B

e
g

i
n

n
e
r

Z
o

n
e
 
P

a
r
k
i
n

g

0
.
1
7
H

a
.
 
5
5
 
C

a
r
s

S
h

o
r
t
 
T

e
r
m

 
W

a
l
k
-
i
n

U
n

-
S

e
r
v
i
c
e
d

C
a
m

p
i
n

g

T
u

b
i
n

g
 
H

u
t

T
i
c
k
e
t
s
,
 
S

n
o
w

 
t
u
b
e

s
t
o
r
a
g
e
,
 
W

C

C
r
o

s
s
-
c
o

u
n

t
r
y
/

S
n

o
w

s
h

o
e
i
n

g

W
a
r
m

i
n
g
 
H

u
t

J
e
t
 
B

o
a
t
/
C

a
n

o
e
/
K

a
y
a
k
 
T

i
c
k
e
t
 
B

o
o

t
h

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182


	3.1 2015 02 10 RC Minutes
	5.1 a RFD Teepee Creek
	5.1 b February 24 2015 Presentation to MD Greenview - TP Ag Events Centre
	Teepee Creek Ag Events Centre
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20

	8.1 a Council Meeting Cancellation
	8.2 a Canfor Requests
	8.2 b Canfor
	8.2 c FTR Km 80-115 Location Plan
	8.3 a Policy Structure
	8.4 a RFD Employee Consultant Housing Policy 1006
	8.4 c 1006 Employee Consultant Temporary Housing
	8.5 a RFD Policy 4006
	8.5 b Policy 4006 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement
	8.5 c OP 06 - Equipment and Vehicle Replacement
	8.6 a Waptiti Corridor 02 24 15
	8.6 b WCPS Letter Jan 29 15
	8.7 a Rescind Motion
	8.8 a AUMA Invite
	8.8 b Town of GC Letter
	8.9 a Flashing Green Lamp Program 2015
	8.9 b 2001 Legal opinion
	8.9 c August, 2013 Legal Opinion
	8.10 a Nitehawk Recreation Area
	8.10 b Nitehawk Business Plan
	NitehawkSkiHillBusinessPlan2014-2 Betty
	Capital Spending 2014-2017
	3 Potential Incoming Solar Radiation Analysis
	4 Existing Ski Hill and Skier Service Facilities
	5 Ski Hill Slope  Terrain Capacity Analysis
	6 Base Area Slope Analysis
	7 Base Area Design Analysis  Development Capability
	8a Recreational Master Plan
	8b Recreational Master Plan - Regional Context
	nitehawk
	nitehawk-001
	nitehawk-002

	8.10 c Road Maintenance Report



